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The year 2004 was well-disposed to the oil
industry and we duly took advantage of the
prevailing conditions. I highly appreciate the
fact that,  in addition to the demands of
adapting to the organization and manage-
ment of the integration, sufficient attention
was paid both to the smooth operation of
the main production units and to the key
investments that have formed a solid 
foundation for our future achievements. Let
me use this opportunity to summarize the
most important results.

PPaarrttnneerrsshhiipp  aanndd  iinntteeggrraattiioonn  ssyynneerrggiieess

Our present experience testifies that MOL
and Slovnaft together are more competitive
both from both a regional and European
point of view. Synergies from the integrated
activities are being achieved from the 
continuously improving supply chain manage-
ment (SCM), optimised logistics operations,
single sales channel operations in fuel sales
and plastics,  and through joint crude oil  
purchasing in the MOL Group. Contributions
resulting from synergies, increasing efficiency
and improving processes over the past year
reached the level of SKK 2.5 billion. I am
convinced that the potential generated by
the integration of our companies has not yet
been fully exploited.

FFrruuiittss  ooff  tthhee  ssttaattee--ooff--aarrtt  mmooddeerrnniizzaattiioonn

The results of 2004 more than confirmed the
justification of our development strategy
implemented during the past ten years. The
correct choice and well timed investments in
improving the efficiency of Russian crude
oil processing were the main driving forces
in establishing us among the most modern
European refineries and enabling us to take
advantage of the favourable development
of external factors. It is also necessary to

mention in this respect that internal factors
contributed to the excellent results in larger
measure than the external factors, and that
we succeeded in improving all major indi-
cators compared to the previous year.

FFaavvoouurraabbllee  yyeeaarr  ffoorr  tthhee  ooiill  iinndduussttrryy

Favourable conditions prevailed for the oil
industry globally. The consistently high crude
oil prices obviously surprised even the most
bullish analysts. There were several drivers
creating the situation — continuously increasing
demand from the two largest consumers,
the U.S. and China — combined with generally
l imited crude oil  production capacities,
increased anxiet y about the reliabil it y 
of supplies from Iraq and other potentially
unstable large crude oil  suppliers and 
on the other side, the uncertain situation
surrounding the Russian oil  giant Yukos
resulted in high reference Brent Dtd prices,
which achieved an average 38.22 USD/bbl
in 2004 compared to 28.82 USD/bbl in 2003.
These factors,  together with the l imited 
capability of the refineries to increase their 
output and low level of inventories resulted
in a significant increase in motor fuel crack
spreads.

Among the external factors,  the most 
significant driver impacting Slovnaf t’s 
performance was the higher motor fuel crack
spreads, which contributed to the results
with SKK 5.1 billion. Our ability to effectively
process sour crude oil and thus to benefit
from higher Brent-Ural spread contributed
SKK 2.7 bill ion to the results. During the
year the strengthening of the Slovak crown
resulted in a negative SKK 3.9 billion  influ-
ence on the performance of Slovnaft Group
as the majorit y of refiner y products are
denominated in USD.

LLeetttteerr  ffrroomm  tthhee  CChhaaiirrmmaann
ooff  tthhee  BBooaarrdd  ooff  DDiirreeccttoorrss

DDeeaarr  sshhaarreehhoollddeerrss,,

2004 marked the first year of an integrated Slovnaft operation within the MOL Group 
— and already it showed a ver y strong performance. With full awareness of the results
achieved, I can confirm that the integration process was executed in a highly professional
manner. During the past year we in fact experienced a two-tier integration as several months
before the accession of Slovakia and Hungary to the European Union, Slovnaft, MOL and TVK
trailed the benefits of partnership and integration.

SSllaavvoommíírr  HHaattiinnaa

Chairman

of the Board of Directors
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The external environment in 2004 was also
well-disposed towards the petrochemical
industry. Higher quoted LDPE and PP prices
contributed to the improved business results
by SKK 1.7 billion and the integration into
the MOL Group of Slovnaf t’s and T VK‘s
petrochemical activit ies in Tiszaújvaros
enabled us to react more flexibly to market
developments.

RReeccoorrdd  uuttiilliizzaattiioonn  ooff  pprroodduuccttiioonn  ccaappaacciittiieess

Along with the above-mentioned factors the
strong operational results were also 
suppor ted by smooth and uninterrupted
operations resulting in a higher volume of
produced and sold products.  In 2004
Slovnaft recorded a year-on-year increase
in crude oil  processing of 169 kt and the
total  volume of the processed crude oil
reached its highest level since 1993. More
effective exploitation of technological equip-
ment and higher volumes produced in
response to strong regional demand con-
tributed SKK 2.9 billion to the results. Great
efforts were made on the ongoing complex
engineering project that is focused on 
eliminating shor tcomings and optimising
technological refinery processes that aims at
increasing profit by 0.4 USD/bbl per barrel
of processed crude oil.

PPrrooffiitt  ddrriivveenn  bbyy  eexxppoorrtt

Development of exports also deserves our
attention as in volume terms the 10% year-on-
year increase contributed significantly to
the results. Slovnaft not only succeeded in
maintaining its position but also fur ther 
justif ied i tself  as one of  the key Slovak
exporters.

Thanks to the strong increase in sales of
motor fuels and petrochemical products on
the foreign markets,  in 2004 Slovnaf t
increased its total sales revenues by nearly
27%.

More significant growth — by 39% on a year
on year basis — was recorded in revenues
from sales of petrochemical products resulting
from the common single-channel sales 
operation implemented in Slovnaft and TVK
and focused on higher profitability end-user
sales on the key export markets.

The increase in motor fuel sales was driven
mainly by strong demand for ultra low 
sulphur diesel in Austria and Germany.

During 2004 the share of the ultra low 
sulphur diesel continued to grow and by year
end slightly exceeded 56% of the sold diesel
volumes.

Unlike exports, volume of domestic sales
was severely influenced by high global prices
of crude oil and crude oil products and thus
recorded a total year-on-year decrease of 3.6%.

RReettaaiill  mmaarrkkeett  sshhaarree  kkeepptt  ddeessppiittee  lloowweerr  nnuummbbeerr
ooff  sseerrvviiccee  ssttaattiioonnss

The high crude oil prices impacted the retail
fuel market even more than the wholesale
market.  The impact is visible mainly in 
gasoline sales,  where in 2004 a sl ight
decrease for the domestic market was
recorded. This was, however, compensated
by increased sales of diesel. The LPG seg-
ment also maintained its growth dynamic.
These trends reflected the market develop-
ment in Europe while the total retail volumes 
sold stabilized on the level same as the year
ago. 

At the end of December the Group operated
346 service stations, of which 281 were in
Slovakia. Despite the closure of 24 service
stations in the domestic network during
2004, Slovnaf t’s SAPPO market share
stayed practically unchanged. Af ter the 
successful introduction of branded fuels 
— Tempo Plus and Eco+ motogas, by the year
end the Mol Group had released premium
EVO diesel simultaneously on both the
Slovak and Hungarian markets thus extending
the Slovnaft network offering.

HHiigghh  qquuaalliittyy,,  hheeaalltthh  aanndd  ssaaffeettyy  aanndd  eennvviirroonn--
mmeenntt  mmaannaaggeemmeenntt  ssyysstteemmss

The super visor y audit  of the integrated 
management system in Slovnaft reconfirmed
the IMS (Integrated Management System) 
cer tif icates received the year ago. SGS
Slovakia company represented by the inter-
national audit  team identif ied no major 
inadequacies requiring corrective measures
in the three systems creating IMS. The
results of the audit confirmed that following
integration into the MOL Group in 2004,
Slovnaft proved compliance of its integrated
management systems with the standards’
requirements and documented their 
systematic improvement and extraordinary
level of compliance with the applicable 
legislation. 
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IInnvveessttmmeennttss  ——  kkeeyy  ttoo  ffuuttuurree

Investment performance in 2004 was also
very strong. Since the successful completion
and start up of a new production unit for
deep desulphurisation of middle distillates at
the end of 2004, Slovnaft has been able to
produce a full range of “zero sulphur” quality
diesel and thus to meet the European Union
standards ef fective from 2005 and 2009
respectively.  In this way Slovnaf t has
strenghtened its competitiveness, and
brought another ecological contribution 
to a healthier environment. 

MMaaiinn  oobbjjeeccttiivveess  ffoorr  22000055

In the first half of 2005 Slovnaft will put into
operation a new polypropylene unit with 
a capacity of 225 kt. Investments into the unit
will exceed SKK 5 billion. The existing capacity
will be increased by a factor of three and the
unit will provide a wider range of better quality
petrochemical products, thus enabling the
petrochemical division to penetrate new 
market segments. It will  be the task of 
marketing to fight to maintain market share in
the strengthening competitive environment.

In the coming year, the motivation of our
human capital to further improve internal
performance will also be a key to sustainable
success. Despite the excellent results
achieved in the past year I am convinced
that there is sti l l  room for improvements
aimed at fulfilling all our main objectives and
tasks in 2005.

AAcckknnoowwlleeddggeemmeennttss

On behalf of the Board of Directors I would
like to thank our business partners for their
trust and express deep appreciation to our
employees and managers for their exemplary
work that contributed considerably to the
2004 results. 

In finalising my address as chairman I would
like to take the liberty to say a few personal
words. I feel that Slovnaft has taken the right
path,  and undergone impor tant changes
which have laid down firm foundations for
its present, and I believe also future achieve-
ments.  I  am convinced that a promising
future lies ahead of the Company and that
managers and employees will make ever y
ef for t to promote Slovnaf t’s increasing 
competitive strength and excellent results
and thus also of the MOL Group to which
we belong.

Now, with these excellent results of 2004, 
I have decided that the time has come for
me to leave the Company in which I have
spent 35 years of my l ife,  where I  have 
followed the unusual path from shift worker
to the Board chairman.

I would like to thank all of those who have
inspired and supported me along the way,
and those who, during last eleven years as
the head of the company shared with me
both the positive and negative aspects of
the world of management.

I thank the shareholders for their trust and
confidence; I thank Board members for their
highly professional work and would like to
wish you, Slovnaf t and the whole MOL
Group every success in the future.

SSllaavvoommíírr  HHaattiinnaa
Chairman of the Board of Directors
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RReeffiinniinngg

Requirements for production of ultra-low-
sulphur motor fuels increased significantly
during the year. A new production unit for
deep desulphurisation of middle distillates
(HDS 7 — hydro desulphurisation unit) was
constructed and star ted up in November
2004. This accomplishment enabled the 
production of motor diesel with an ultra low 
sulphur content.  In addition, a catalyst
change in HDS 5 and an upgrade of the Base
oil  Hydrotreater contributed to the low 
sulphur motor diesel production. Motor
diesel in ULSD quality produced in 2004 by
Slovnaf t achieved the 2005 European 
and represented 56% of total motor diesel

production in 2004.

As a part of its efforts to improve operational
efficiency, Slovnaft continued the introduction
of several internal measures to reduce the
consumption of natural gas and electricity,
as well as catalysts and utilities resulting in
significant cost savings. A substantial  
contribution came from the Refinery Profit
Improvement Project (RPIP) targeted at 
process improvements with the benefit of
USD 0.4/bbl of processed crude oil. Capacity
tests were carried out on the key production
units in order to reach higher capacit y 
utilization. Based on the test results capacity
utilization on the uni-cracker and cat-cracker
units was increased to 120% of nameplate
capacity. At the same time other investment
projects started with the objective of increasing
yields and decreasing production losses.

MMaarrkkeettiinngg

The share of export sales in volume terms
increased by 3% compared to last year,
reaching almost 74% of total product sales.
Traditionally,  the Czech Republic is the 
most impor tant market with ver y good 
logistic options for the customers. Slovnaft
strengthened its leading import position in
sales of motor fuels on the Polish market
based on activities of its subsidiary Slovnaft
Polska. Its position in the Austrian and
German markets was improved significantly
by the ability to meet increasing demand for
deliver y of ultra low sulphur motor fuels.
Despite decreased gasoline sales Slovnaft
succeeded in keeping its leading position
in the domestic market for motor fuels.

RReeffiinniinngg  aanndd  mmaarrkkeettiinngg

SSuummmmaarryy

In 2004 Slovnaft processed 5.7 mil tons of crude oil, which was purchased and supplied
from the Russian Federation through the Druzhba crude oil pipeline. Motor fuels production
for 2004 reached a record high driven mainly by maximizing the production unit utilization.
Marketing recorded ver y good results in export sales mainly due to the ability to meet
increased demand for ultra-low-sulphur motor fuels. 
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RReettaaiill

Slovnaft, a.s. continued its retail network
restructuring in 2004, focusing on quality
improvement and increased competitive-
ness.

In 2004 Slovnaft’s service station network
achieved approximately the same sales in
Slovakia as during the previous year,  
however with a lower number of operating
service stations. As of 31 December 2004,
Slovnaf t operated 281 ser vices stations.
Average fuel sales per station increased by
3.7%. During the year, 24 service stations
were closed, 4 new stations were put into
operation, and reconstruction of 8 stations
was finished. Retail market share and market
share in the framework of SAPPO
(Slovenská asociácia petrolejárskeho
priemyslu a obchodu) was slightly lower than
previous year. A considerable improvement
in service station quality is documented in
particular in the 15.3% increase in the sale of
non-fuel goods. 

A moderate 5.9% reduction in gasoline sales
was registered. The development in diesel
fuel sales was quite successful — recording
an increase of 5.7%. LPG was sold at 63 
ser vice stations. At the end of the year
Slovnaft launched to the market a new brand
of sulphur-free diesel fuel under brand name
EVO-Diesel,  which was available at 64 
service stations. 

Slovnaf t continued its active marketing 
suppor t of the ser vice station network. 
Two consumer campaigns were launched
during the year:  ”Chceš Hawai,  neváhaj 
a hwaj” and ”Tankovanie na Slovnafte letí”.
The development of the Bonus Loyalt y
Programme successfully continued, with
tens of thousands of new customers joining
the programme. 

The long term programme for achieving 
a high level of quality in services provided
has been verified by “Myster y Shopping”
visits.  Results of the Myster y Shopping
showed a considerable shift towards a higher
level of staff approaches to customers and
an improvement in the service station oper-
ators’ work.

Redesigned FS restaurant areas were
offered to our customers. These are the first
projects of our new retail gastro-concept. 

The Slovnaf t Group operated 42 ser vice 
stations in the Czech Republic. The network
did not expand during the year,  however
Slovnaft is fully aware of the importance of
the Czech market and is looking for new
opportunities for network expansion. 

The Slovnaf t Group operated 23 ser vice 
stations in Poland (of which 11 were 
franchise stations). The volume of sold fuels
in the ser vice stations network increased
more than 3 t imes compared to the 
previous year.
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HHiigghheerr  eeaarrnniinnggss  ddeessppiittee  tthhee  uunnffaavvoouurraabbllee  
iinndduussttrriiaall  eennvviirroonnmmeenntt

The price of pyrolysis raw materials rose 
further from the high level reached in 2003,
but the prices quoted for polymers in
European markets also showed an upward
trend. The negative impact of the business
environment was also par tly counter-
balanced by the strengthening of the Euro
against the US Dollar. The significantly higher
production volume from the better utilisation
of available capacities, the improvement of
cost ef ficiency and the benefits from 
integrated operations in the Slovnaft Group
resulted in a significant increase in profit. 

The petrochemical segment processed 573
kt of naphtha, 161 kt of light hydrocarbons
and transferred 295 kt of steam cracking
by-products back to the refinery. The steam
cracker produced 221 kt of ethylene and 102
kt of propylene. All of these figures show 
a sharp increase compared to 2003 due to
the significantly better utilisation of available
capacities. 

Due to the improved sales activit y,  the 
segment was able to move its increased 
polymer production through the market, and
polymer sales increased to 266 kt. After the
implementation of the Single Sales Channel
Management with TVK, Slovnaft strengthened
its position in Germany, Italy and Poland
with the aim of shifting deliveries to end-
users.

CCoommppeettiittiivvee  ssiizzee  ooff  bbuussiinneessss

Together with the refinery operations, the
petrochemical capacities of Slovnaft create
an integrated entit y.  The Integration of
petrochemical activities into the MOL Group
provides the crit ical  mass to allow it  to 
compete on a European scale and 
contributes to feedstock supply flexibility.
In line with the strategy developed in 2002
and based on the favourable outlook for 
market demand growth in the region and the
flexible feedstock availabil it ies due to 
integration, management decided to build

PPeettrroocchheemmiiccaallss

IImmpprroovviinngg  ccoommppeettiittiivveenneessss  tthhrroouugghh  iinntteeggrraatteedd  ooppeerraattiioonn,,  eeffffiicciieennccyy  iimmpprroovveemmeenntt  aanndd  ggrroowwtthh

Since 1 January 2004, the Petrochemical segment of Slovnaft has operated as part of the
MOL Group’s integrated Petrochemical Division. The Division is responsible for the production
of olefins and polyolefins by processing hydrocarbons produced in the Slovnaft refinery
and for their sale to the domestic and regional customers via an integrated sales channel. 
One of the key challenges of the Division is to satisfy the rapidly increasing polymer demand
in Eastern Europe.
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up its petrochemical business to a European
scale by implementing a strategic develop-
ment plan. By the end of 2003, a project
amounting to EUR 143 mln was launched to
boost the polypropylene capacities. A new
polypropylene will use the Dow Chemical
Co’s l icensed technology and the imple-
mentation is on schedule for a start-up in
Q2 2005. Af ter this,  the polypropylene 
production capacity will rise by more than
3 times to 255 kt per year. The new technology
will enable the production of a wide range 
of polymers for application in foils, fibres, 
injection-moulded products for the automotive
industr y, and consumer products. On the
other hand, thanks to new modern technology,
the new plant will have a positive impact on
the environment — a decrease in emissions
of harmful oxides, decrease in the specific
consumption of cooling water,  and the 
elimination of dangerous hexane solvent
usage.

OOuuttllooookk

Based on the outlook for a gradually 
accelerating economic recover y, demand
for polymers is expected to increase. The
competitive position in the regional market
of the Petrochemical Division as a par t 
of the MOL Group will be robust due to the
high operational reliability and increasing
economies of scale. Further opportunities
for improvement are in the integration and
rationalisation of internal processes. The key
targets in the near future are to decrease
production losses resulting from non-
planned shut-downs, to minimise the volume
of other quality polymer products, and to
harmonise the brands of polymers produced
by T VK and Slovnaft.
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With the needs of internal customers in
mind, each business unit has its own HSE
partner responsible for providing the relevant
HSE ser vices and professional suppor t.
These managers are supported by a Central
team, whose members are also responsible
for project management. HSE Panels, cross
functional “internal advisory bodies”, which
are independent from the organizational
structure cover all expert areas of HSE.

Another impor tant event in 2004 with 
a significant impact on HSE operation was
the approval of a new HSE Policy. The new
policy was necessar y to reflect our 
integrated operation, accession to the
European Union and new expectations of
our stakeholders on our values, behaviour
and performance.

Slovnaft successfully passed the sur veil-
lance audits of the Integrated Management
System cer tif ication in accordance with
Occupational Health and Safety specification
(OHSAS 18001), Environmental management
system standard (ISO 14001) and Quality
management system standard (ISO
9001:2000). In this way we have retained
the IMS certificates obtained in 2003 as the
first major oil and petrochemical company
in Central Europe to do so.

Simultaneously, the foreign certified body
validated our Environmental statement 
necessar y for registration to EMAS
(Environmental Management and Audit
Scheme). This is the first time that Slovnaft
has its environmental performance of Vlčie
hrdlo area validated by an independent body.
We see registration with EMAS as one 
of the tools for continuous improvement.

Our aim is to support HSE management with
information technology tools.  As a con-

sequence, the HSE INFO system project
started at the end of 2004. The MOL HSE
INFO system will be customised for Slovnaft 
purposes and implemented during 2005.

CCoommmmuunniiccaattiioonn  wwiitthh  ssttaakkeehhoollddeerrss

Following the global trend towards corporate
social  responsibil it y repor ting, we have 
published the first Slovnaf t sustainable
development report. In has developed from
previous HSE repor ts and describes our 
contribution to sustainable development in
economic, social and environmental areas.
The report was published only in electronic
version and is available from our official web
site www.slovnaft.sk, together with the MOL
Group sustainable development report.

HHSSEE

HHSSEE  MMaannaaggeemmeenntt

With the aim of providing high quality professional HSE services to business units more
efficiently, HSE started operating under a new integrated organisation structure at the beginning
of 2004. Headed by the Group HSE Director, the second level of management is separated
into two regions, with responsibility for coordination of Slovnaft HSE activities and ensuring
local HSE operations belonging to the HSE coordinator for the North region.
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SSaaffeettyy

With the exception of the year 2002, LTIF
(number of work injuries per one mil l ion
worked hours) has shown a continuous
decrease since 1998. Compared to the 8
injuries in 2003 we had 6 in 2004, which
makes LTIF equal to 1.1.  According to
Concawe (the oil  companies’  European
organisation for environment, health and
safety) report, the industry LTIF average in
2003 was 3.2. We are proud to report that in
2004 we did not record any fatality, neither
of our own employees, nor contractors.  
In the Slovnaf t Group, which includes 
subsidiaries, we recorded a decrease in over-
all injuries from 19 in 2003 to 11 in 2004.

We achieved a significant improvement 
in fire prevention. In 2004 we registered only
2 fire cases, one of them not exceeding
15,000 SKK worth of damage. Compared 
to 2003, this is a reduction of approximately
75% in the number of cases as well  as 
damage caused.

We want to improve our safety performance
even further through introducing the Safe
workplaces project currently in place at MOL
Group level to Slovnaft as well. The goal of
the project is to bring the number of injuries
even further down and create healthy work-
places for all employees.

EEnnvviirroonnmmeenntt

Our long-standing commitment to preserving
the environment is demonstrated by the
accounting provision created for the 
remediation of the environmental damage
caused by past activities. The status at the
end of 2004 was SKK 903 million compared
to SKK 430 million in 2003.

We have continued our retail  site recon-
struction activities with even higher intensity
than in the previous years. Compared to SKK
40 million released in 2003 for the remediation
of soil and groundwater at Retail ser vice
stations being decommissioned, in 2004 
we have released SKK 84 m. During 2004
we completed tendering for the first stage of
SIMPLE (SAGAL implementation) project
implementation, which is remediation of soil
and groundwater at logistics depots. The
next step in the project will be the realisation
of remediation and the release of provision
for the spent amount.

In 2004 we spent SKK 412 m on environ-
mental projects, which is approximately SKK
70 million more than in the previous year.
Almost three quarters of this amount was
spent on the storage tanks reconstruction
program scheduled to be completed by 2009.
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In the air  protection field we decreased 
emissions of SO2 by approximately 15%
compared to 2003. We decreased TPH (Total
Petroleum Hydrocarbons) volume in dis-
charged water by almost one quar ter.  
On the other hand, excavations during 
construction of new production units and
remediation works increased the volume of
hazardous waste by 13% compared to 2003.

The end of 2004 saw a commissioning of the
HDS 7. The unit enables production of diesel
fuel with a sulphur content below 10 ppm,
which is in compliance with the EU require-
ments not only for the period between 2005
— 2008, but also beyond 2008. Moreover, 
by replacing the two old units, our impact
on the environment will be decreased even
further.

OOuuttllooookk

In 2005 we will announce a new HSE Policy
to ensure that all employees are aware of
their possible contribution to our common
values. We wil l  not l imit  our ef for ts to
increasing HSE awareness of our own staff,
but also intend to improve the HSE 
management of our contractors. We expect
to maintain a downward trend in work injury
frequency by continued implementation 
of the Safe Workplaces project. The com-
pletion of the HSE Info project at Slovnaft
should give managers computer-based 
support in their management of HSE issues.
In 2005 we aspire to become registered with
the Environmental management and audit
scheme. Our focus wil l  be on the imple-
mentation of the Logistics Sites Remediation
program and the ef ficient management 
of hazardous waste disposal. In this way, we
aim to contribute to minimising impacts of
our activities on the environment.
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Fulfilment of liabilities from the Collective
Agreement for the years 2003 — 2005 
continued in 2004. The company completed
the third phase of the harmonization plans 
in the area of employee remuneration. 
The average monthly wage at Slovnaf t
reached 40,284 SKK and was well above the
standard compared to the average wage 
in Slovakia. Seven of Slovnaft’s employees
were rewarded for their lifelong work within
the whole of the MOL Group. Compared to
the previous year, the cost of the optional
social  al lowance increased from SKK 30
thousand to SKK 36 thousand per employee
per year.  In total  the optional social
allowance paid amounted to 121 million SKK.
The contribution to accident and life insurance
of employees was accounted for in social
care.  It  was uti l ized by 2,395 employees
(71%) and the company used 13.5 mill ion
SKK for this purpose. The employer’s 
contribution to the supplementary pension
insurance increased to the sum of SKK 46
mill ion.  On 31st December 2004, 3,077
employees were insured (94%). In 2004 the
cost of providing interest free loans to
employees increased reaching SKK 16 million.

Following an extensive reconstruction of the
catering premises, the catering ser vices
improved. In 2004 77% of employees chose
to use these and were given a choice of 
11 types of meals. Slovnaft contributed SKK
36 millions to the catering services. 

Within the health program which focuses on
increasing employee interest in a healthy
lifestyle, Slovnaft engaged in health pro-
tection activit ies and provided medical 
examinations for its employees. To prevent
viral  diseases, the company provided 
vaccination against influenza and high quality
vitamins. A large number of employees use
sport facilities at Slovnaft free of charge,

HHuummaann  RReessoouurrcceess

The beginning of 2004 saw a star t to the practical integration within the MOL Group, 
of which Slovnaft, a. s., is an important member. This included a harmonization of individual
human resources management systems across the Group and a restructuring of the company
to a value-oriented organization, which had an impact the company headcount. The charts
below illustrate the development of the number of permanent employees at Slovnaft, a. s.,
and at the Slovnaft Group.
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especially the swimming pool,  sauna, 
the sports hall and tennis courts. In order
to provide the employees of the MOL Group
a chance to get acquainted with each other
informally the 2nd annual MOL Olympics
Games were successfully organized, 
The winter sports games took place in Valča
near Turčianske Teplice and more than 200
participants from various companies within
the MOL Group took part. 

Slovnaft contributed to the social policy with
a total  of SKK 436 mil l ion in 2004. The 
company provided SKK 151 million in the
form of severance payments for dismissed
employees. In order to soften the negative
impact of the dismissal the company offered
outplacement services, retraining courses
and legal,  psychological and personal 
advisory services. 15 employees used the
outplacement services; while 76 employees
uti l ized retraining courses focused on 
business economics,  language skil ls,  
information technologies, transport, welder
and stoker training. The costs for these 
activities amounted to SKK 630 thousand. 

In the area of education, the special focus
was on the implementation of the new 
language policy of adopting English as an
official language. Almost 500 employees
took part in the language education. 

The Program of Talent Fostering continued
in 2004. A dominant area of the program
were the international internships in various
areas of specialties in addition to 1 — 3
months rotations through Slovnaft’s depart-
ments.  The care for talented universit y 
graduates became a new par t of this 
program. The company created new job
opportunities for them with a wide program
of specialized training at the selected 
depar tments. The total cost of employee
education was SKK 30 million.

In accordance with the strategic plans of
the company, the SOU Chemické (SOUCH 
— Specialized Chemical Apprentice School)
was separated from Slovnaft and  since the
end of 2004 has been owned by the
Municipality District of Bratislava. Based
on the mutually favourable contracts, the
training of professionals for both the 
company and the region as a whole wil l  
continue. In 2004, the SOUCH trained a total
of 118 graduates on three- and four-years
specialized courses for positions such as
marketing employee, chemist — operator,
machines and devices technician and 
electronic technician.

The Slovnaf t Group shows its social  
responsibility by implementing the Ethics
Code. The Ethical Advisory Service and the
Ethics Window under the leadership 
of an independent specialist provided their
services with the aim of developing ethical
principles within the company. The Ethics
Code of the Slovnaft Group won the first
place in the competition for “The best ethics
code in Slovakia.”
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Work in the field of technological research
was focused on an output increase through
the optimisation of technological processes
and catalytical systems. The filtration unit
for clarified oil from the FCC unit has been
introduced to permanent operation after its
examination. 

Protection of the environment remains 
a permanent priority for the Slovnaft Group.
The implementation of the new IPPC
(Integrated Pollution Prevention and
Control) directive started in 2004, and will
continue for two more years.  In the first
phase priority substances were obser ved
and technologies were evaluated by the BAT
(Best Available Technique) method.
According to legislation requirements the
API (American Petroleum Institute) separator

was covered and the necessary verification
measurements were made for the new level
of VOC (Volatile Organic Compounds) with
a focus on the corrosion mechanism and the
protection method of chosen technological
plants.

RReesseeaarrcchh  aanndd  DDeevveellooppmmeenntt

Research centre operations were focused on a further quality increase of ultra-low sulphur
fuels. The new formulation of additives ensures high economic features of the fuels and
radically decreases emissions. As the research of motor fuels containing biofuels recorded
significant progress, the start of their production is expected in 2005. The production of ETBE
made of bioethanol was successfully tested on the MTBE production plant.
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OOvveerrvviieeww  ooff  bbuussiinneessss  eennvviirroonnmmeenntt

In 2004 crude oil prices rose significantly
to levels not seen since the early 1980s.
Unexpectedly rapid growth in Asia (mainly in
China) driven by global economic expansion,
higher US market demand due to relatively
low stocks and also increasing instability in
Iraq had an impact on the crude oil price
development. Market prices increased from
31 USD/bbl in Januar y to almost 38
USD/bbl at the end of May. In June the price
eased of f following OPEC’s decision to
increase their quota and production. From
the end of June the price continued to grow,
suppor ted by continuously increasing
demand from the two largest consumers
(U.S. and China) as well  as l imited 
exploration due to the negative impact 
of a hurricane on fields in the Mexican gulf.
A threat of strikes in Nigeria and Norway
and the possibil it y of bankruptcy of the
Russian producer Yukos also affected the
crude oil price development. All the above
mentioned factors resulted in a high reference
Brent Dtd prices, which reached a historic
peak of more than 52 USD/bbl in late
October.  During November the situation 
in the Gulf of Mexico returned to normal and
the crude oil price fell sharply, stabilizing 
at a level of 40 USD/bbl in December.  
The annual Brent price was higher by 32.5%
compared to 2003, achieving an average 
of 38.22 USD/bbl. 

The development of motor fuel crack
spreads (the difference between the quoted
price of a particular oil product and the Brent
crude oil  price) in 2004 was closely 
connected with the situation in the crude oil
market.

Motor gasoline crack spreads in Q1 rose
steadily, supported by growing exports from
Europe to the US. This was triggered by
demonstrations in Venezuela, a major US
gasoline supplier. From April, values started
to increase significantly as a result of the
increased seasonal traffic and low inventory
level in the US, which caused dramatically
higher exports of motor fuels from Europe,
resulting in a significant increase in motor
fuel prices. Crack spreads reached their
peak in May (at almost 160 USD/t). After a
ver y volatile development during Q3, the
motor gasoline crack spread development
stabilized in Q4 oscillating around 95 USD/t.

In December the crack spread of motor 
gasoline fell to almost 50 USD/t.

Motor diesel crack spreads in Q1 were lower
than a year ago, however still considerably
high in comparison with typical values for
this year period. The fact that refineries
focused on increasing motor gasoline 
production caused shortage in supplies of
motor diesel; as a result, crack spreads went
up in March from 48 USD/t to 68 USD/t.
After a relatively stable development in Q2,
crack spreads started to go up again in July
achieving in November the highest level of
2004 (more than 160 USD/t). The December
figures fell slightly to around 157 USD/t.

MMaannaaggeemmeenntt  ddiissccuussssiioonn  aanndd  aannaallyyssiiss
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FFiinnaanncciiaall  ppeerrffoorrmmaannccee

PPrrooffiitt  aanndd  lloossss  ssttaatteemmeenntt

Net sales were higher by SKK 17.9 bn 
(27%) compared to 2003 as a result of both
the positive development of the external
environment and favourable internal effects.
The positive ef fects of the external 
environment were represented by higher
crude oil products and plastics quoted prices.
These completely of fset the negative 
development of the foreign exchange rate,
where the SKK was more than 12% stronger
against the USD compared to 2003.
Significantly higher volumes sold on export
markets in particular was the most important
internal factor in the improvement of net sales.

Raw material costs were higher by SKK 8.4
bn (16%) mainly due to the higher quoted
price of crude oil, and by SKK 2.0 bn due to
the higher processing of crude oil and other
feedstock including mainly natural  gas,  
ethylene, naphtha, additives, VGO and other
items. Among other major factors driving
the increase in raw material cost was the
cost of goods sold, which increased by SKK
1.2 bn as a result of a different purchasing
structure and higher prices of purchased
commodities. 

Personnel expenses were slightly lower, as
the savings from the lower number of
employees exceeded wage increases.
Depreciation was up by SKK 327 mln (9%)
resulting from the capitalization of HDS 7
and creation of provisions for the impair-
ment of assets. The value of services used
was up slightly by SKK 104 mln (3%), mainly
due to higher transportation cost driven by
higher volumes sold. Higher other operating
expenses resulted from the higher creation
of provisions compared to 2003. Net finance
revenues were lower by SKK 512 mln (79%)
as a result of the put option settlement linked
to the repaid Merri l l  Lynch loan and the
development of foreign exchange rates.

BBaallaannccee  sshheeeett

Property, plant and equipment increased by
SKK 3.2 bn (9%) due to capital expenditure
of SKK 6.7 bn, of which SKK 1.3 bn relates to
uncompleted assets.  The main projects
include PP3 (will be capitalized in Q2 2005),
HDS 7 (capitalized in December 2004) and
retail network development. Available for
sale f inancial  assets of SKK 1.4 bn 

represent the purchase of TVK shares from
the company Hermesz, Rt. Inventories, up
by SKK 360 mil l ion (8%) are a result  of
already mentioned higher quoted prices of
crude oil  products.  Trade receivables,  
significantly higher by SKK 2.3 bn (39%)
were influenced by two factors — the higher
quoted prices of crude oil products on one
hand and higher volumes of sales on the
other. Cash and cash equivalents up by SKK
2.7 bn (58%) reflect the substantially higher
profit  and development of other balance
sheet items. Long-term provisions for 
l iabil it ies and charges rose by SKK 116 
million (17%) as a result of their different
creation and release compared to 2003.
Trade and other payables were higher by
SKK 1.1 bn (9%) as a result  of already 
mentioned higher crude oil quoted prices
and higher processing. Shor t-term loans
were almost zero, a SKK 811 mil l ion
decrease compared to 2003 resulting from
a relatively high level of cash from operations.
As a consequence, there was no need for
external loans. The current portion of long-
term debt is connected with repayment of
the Merrill  Lynch III  loan in August 2004.
Shor t-term provisions for l iabil it ies and
charges are higher by SKK 645 million mainly
due to the creation of a reserve for severance
buy-out at the end of the year 2004 in the
amount of SKK 924 million.

CCaasshh--ffllooww  

The net increase in cash and cash 
equivalents was SKK 2.7 bn, significantly
higher compared to 2003. This is even
despite the fact that in 2004 there were 
higher capital expenditures (up SKK 2.3 bn),
dividend payment (up SKK 2.7 bn) and repay-
ment of ML II I  loan (up SKK 1.6 bn).  
The most important factor that offset all of
these negative impacts was the afore-men-
tioned high operating profit, which was SKK
9.5 bn higher than in 2003.

RReeffiinniinngg  aanndd  MMaarrkkeettiinngg

The Slovnaft refinery processed 5.7 Mt of
crude oil, 169 kt more than in the previous
year. The quality of processed crude oil was
in line with contracted specifications and
the light fraction content was practically the
same as a year ago. 

Motor fuels production was 87.8 kt higher
in the case of motor gasoline and 261 kt
higher in the case of motor diesel compared
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to 2003. This record motor fuel production was
achieved mainly by higher crude oil processing,
higher purchases of raw materials and lower
losses as well  as higher uti l ization 
of distillation and cracking capacities.

The total refinery product sales volume of
5.3 Mt (excluding chemical raw materials
transferred to the Petrochemicals segment)
showed an increase compared to the 5.0 Mt
achieved in 2003. Revenues from sales of
refining products improved significantly (by
27%) in SKK terms. Domestic sales, on which
the main negative influence was lower motor
fuels sales,  decreased by 3.6%. Motor 
gasoline sales were also lower than a year
ago as a result  of decreased market 
consumption and tougher competition. 
In spite of higher market demand caused by
rising consumption (due to the impact of the
growing economy),  motor diesel sales
remained at 2003 levels due to higher
imports from other countries (particularly
the Czech Republic and Austria).  Sales 
revenues from domestic refinery products
increased by 13% in SKK terms mainly as 
a result of ver y high unit prices driven by
much higher quoted prices. 

Export sales in 2004 improved compared to
2003 levels, representing (in volume terms)
almost 74% of total sales  In line with Supply
Chain Management strategy and planning,
Slovnaft focused on the Czech, Austrian,
Polish and German markets. The sales to
the most important export market, the Czech
Republic,  fel l  sl ightly compared to the 
previous year. This was due to low demand
at the beginning of the year as a result of
relatively high stock levels after the excise
tax change which took effect from January
2004. Increasing pressure from competition
during the year also limited sales of Slovnaft

PPrroodduuccttiioonn  ((kktt)) 22000044 22000033 22000022

Motor gasoline 1,670.8 1,583.0 1,555.7

Motor diesel 2,539.8 2,279.0 2,268.9

Kerosene 61.9 65.4 41.1

Heavy fuel oil 190.2 280.7 273.9

Bitumen and Oxidation mixture 67.3 83.5 95.3

Sulphur 65.1 60.2 60.7

Other refinery products 174.2 169.5 181.9

Petrochemical products 212.0 171.7 180.0

TToottaall 44,,998811..33 44,,669933..00 44,,665577..55



motor fuels in this market.  However,  the 
company’s position in the Polish market was
improved. Slovnaf t’s sales in Poland
increased by almost 4% compared to the 
previous year. The main driver behind this
was the supply to the Polish State Reserves
via the LOTOS Group and also to increasing
demand in the end-user segment. Slovnaft’s
ability to meet customer demand for ultra-
low-sulphur motor fuels also allowed sales to
the Austrian market to increase significantly.
Slovnaft sold almost 446  kt more of motor
diesel than last year, helped by deliveries of
10 ppm sulphur motor diesel for MOL Group
customers in Austria, which were realized
through the Bratislava refinery (rather than
the MOL refiner y in Szazhalombatta).
Significantly higher demand than supply
capacity in Germany allowed sales of motor
fuels on this market to increase significantly.
Sales revenues from expor t refiner y 
products rose by 34% in SKK terms com-
pared to 2003.

Sales of other refinery and petrochemical
products slightly decreased against 2003,
representing in volume terms almost 
15% of total  refiner y products sales.
Domestic sales decreased by 8% and export
sales decreased by 6%, mainly due to the
Austrian and Hungarian markets. The main
reason behind this was the lower sales 
of fuel oil due to upgrading to more prof-
itable products.

PPeettrroocchheemmiiccaallss

High utilisation of available capacities and
improved sales activity resulted in 266 kt
polymers sold in 2004, which is 15% more
than in 2003. The single sales channel was
implemented successfully,  and the sales 
volumes increased both in the domestic and
European markets.

In the Slovak market Slovnaft maintained
its market share in the polyethylene market.
Only in the PP market,  the market share
decreased in spite of the increasing sales
volume. In export markets Slovnaft raised
its sales more significantly,  especially in
Italy,  Germany and Poland. The sales 
operations were integrated into the MOL
Group with TVK playing a role in rationalising
the activity and focusing on the end-users.

IInnvveessttmmeenntt  aaccttiivviittiieess

The total  amount of investments at the
Slovnaft Group reached SKK 6,693 million in
2004. A significant part of these resources
was used by two projects of strategic 
impor tance — a new polypropylene plant 
(PP 03) and the Diesel 2005 project. 

The implementation of the PP 03 recorded
significant progress and continues in 
accordance with the approved schedule.
Af ter the full  completion and operation
launch, the capacity of the new plant will
reach the volume of 255 thousand tonnes 
a year. The start-up is expected in the Q2 2005.

The year 2004 was important thanks to the
Diesel 2005 project.  The project was 
successfully finished and the production 
of the new unit for deep desulphurisation 
of middle distillates — HRP 7 was launched 
in November. Realisation of this project has
meant that Slovnaft is now among the group
of refineries that meet strict European Union
regulation, defining the maximum accepted
content of sulphur in Diesel. In addition to
meeting the strict norms, this will  
significantly strengthen our company’s 
position in the EU competing markets.

In 2004 the investment activities at the Retail
segment were among the strongest within

MMaannaaggeemmeenntt  ddiissccuussssiioonn  aanndd  aannaallyyssiiss
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the Slovnaft Group. The major part of the
investments was made in the domestic 
market. In the recent years a significant part
of the Slovakian network was reconstructed
and limited upgrades continued at 19 service
stations to maintain and improve the level
of ser vices provided with focus on shop
improvements and car wash projects.
Ecological projects were run at 50 services
station to meet the tightening environmental
requirements.

In the Czech Republic the network 
rationalization was launched. One service 
station was bought and another unprofitable
sold. An upgrade programme started at 29
ser vice stations in order to maintain and
improve the level of ser vices provided. 
This programme will  be completed at the
beginning of 2005. In Poland 6 Slovnaf t-
owned ser vice stations were opened 
and another 4 franchise stations acquired.

Slovnaf t continued with its investments
focused on environmental protection 
in 2004. The total  amount of resources
invested in this area reached SKK 412 million.
The most important project within the area
was the long-term project of storage tanks
reconstruction where the amount of SKK
299 million was invested.

With the target of maintaining and increasing
operational effectiveness of the existing
refinery and petrochemical technology and
logistical equipments, a total of SKK 493
million investment was made. Slovnaft also
invested SKK 77 million for the support and
development of information technologies.

CCoorrppoorraattee  sseerrvviicceess

The volume of procurement activities realized
via Corporate services exceeded 90% of the
total procurement excluding hydrocarbons
purchases. Over SKK 1.44 bn were realized
through electronic tender with the average
price reduction of 13.4%. The e-catalogue was
extended up to 3,400 items. Major tenders
and contracts included the electricity, civil
construction works, packaging materials,
refinery process control and instrumentation,
and visual items for the retail  network. 
The total benefit from Procurement value
added activities at Slovnaft was SKK 670
mill ion.  Cooperation with Slovnaf t MaO 
in procurement was strengthened in al l
fields. 

The Productivity Centre was established
with the aim of building on benefits 
of previous ef ficiency improvement 
initiatives, identifying new synergies and
overseeing and streamlining purchasing
expenditures of the integrated company by
creating cost transparency at MOL-Group
level.  Based on the successful “pilot” 
project covering 4 spend categories,  
the 1st wave of PSO (Procurement spent
optimisation) projects started.

In 2004, the centralization of Slovnaft and
Slovnaft MaO warehouses continued with
optimisation of their storekeeping activities
and decreasing value of the stored materials.
Outsourcing of the warehouses operation
was completed 2004 and the contract was
signed with Waberer’s.

In 2004, Slovnaf t continued to sell  i ts 
proper ties,  e.g.  buildings and plots,  not 
related to the core business, and with the 
reconstruction of the administration 
buildings. The operative lease for the 
company cars was extended by one year.
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The Board of Directors of Slovnaf t,  a.  s.  
is a supreme super visor y body of the
Company and is responsible for al l  
corporate activities. The key activities of the
Board are focused on increasing shareholder
value, efficiency and profitability, and on
ensuring transparency in corporate activities
towards all  stakeholders.  It  also aims to
ensure appropriate risk management. Goals,
strategies,  and policies approved by the
Board are aimed, in addition to increasing
shareholder value, at meeting expectations
of all stakeholders.

The Supervisory Board in close cooperation
with the Internal Audit oversees the 
implementation of the corporate governance
of the company.

CCooddee  ooff  CCoonndduucctt  ooff  tthhee  SSuuppeerrvviissoorryy  BBooaarrdd
aanndd  tthhee  BBooaarrdd  ooff  DDiirreeccttoorrss

The General Meeting appoints the
Super visor y Board and the Board of
Directors. All members of the Supervisory
Board and the Board of Directors have
access to all relevant information. During
the reporting period the Board of Directors
held 3 meetings and the Supervisory Board
5 meetings. Materials for deliberations 
containing detailed information are 
distributed well in advance of the meetings
to enable members of corporate bodies to
put forward professional proposals. Where 
necessary presentations are organised to
support or to explain submitted materials in
a more detailed way.

The Secretary of the Board of Directors and
the Supervisory Board holds the implemen-
tation records of the corporate bodies’  
resolutions, oversees the implementation
process and provides evaluation and feedback
to bodies. Minutes of the meetings of both

corporate bodies are filed with all supporting
documents with the Secretary.

The Super visor y Board is responsible for
controlling and super vising the Board of
Directors, as the highest supervisory body of
the Company, acting on behalf of the share-
holders.  In l ine with provisions of the
Business Code, employee representatives
at the Company, provide a supervising and
controlling function and ensure that opinions
and interests of Company employees are
taken into account and discussed in a proper
way.

IInnffoorrmmaattiioonn  ddiisscclloossuurree  aanndd  ttrraannssppaarreennccyy

In order to increase its level of openness
Slovnaft introduced a new communication
channel in 2004 to inform the public on its
activit ies.  The Sustainable Development
Report (SDR) enhances the traditional HSE
Report by adding new areas, including the
area of social responsibility.

The Company applies stringent rules in the
area of insider dealing and regularly updates
the l ist  of Board of Directors and
Supervisory Board members and employees
who could be considered insiders. This is
filed with the Financial Market Authority and
the Bratislava Stock Exchange.

In accordance with Company regulation, 
al l  Board of Directors and Super visor y
Board members are required to inform the
company of any material interests they might
have in a transaction. Such announcements
are made at the Board of Directors,
Super visor y Board, and/or a general 
meeting where such a transaction is 
discussed for the first time. Any persons
with material interests, as a rule, abstain
from voting on such transaction.

CCoorrppoorraattee  GGoovveerrnnaannccee

Entrepreneurial activities of Slovnaft, a. s. include crude oil processing, distribution and
sale of refinery and petrochemical products and related services. Slovnaft is one of the
biggest and most impor tant companies in Slovakia and is as such fully aware of the 
importance of implementing modern procedures and best practice in the area of corporate
governance of the company. 
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The Company follows the Corporate
Governance Code as well as rules issued
by the Bratislava Stock Exchange that 
govern disclosure of material information.
By abiding by these rules the Company
ensures access for al l  shareholders and
potential shareholders to information on the
financial situation, business results, owner-
ship and governance of the Company to
allow them to make informed investment
decisions. 

RReellaattiioonnss  wwiitthh  sshhaarreehhoollddeerrss  aanndd  ssttaakkeehhoollddeerrss

In 2004 Slovnaft contributed significantly
to the establishment of a modern institution
of the Republic Union of Employers 
(RÚZ) which integrates a substantial part
of associations of employers and enterprises
(e.g. U.S. Steel, Slovak Gas Company) and
thus represents one of the most important
par tners for the dialogue between the 
government and employers in the Slovak
Republic as well as for the dialogue between
employers in Slovakia and the European
Union.

In November 2004 Slovnaft took a staunch
approach to solving one of the biggest 
ecological catastrophes in Slovak histor y 
— to rescue the forests destroyed by 
a fierce storm in The High Tatras by donating
an amount of SKK 15 million promptly and
without any hesitation to clearing up the
storm damage. In addition, the company
launched a supporting campaign by selling
“Trees for Tatras“ stickers for SKK 15,-  
a piece at its f i l l ing stations which wil l  
continue in 2005. In this way Slovnaft will
suppor t the reforestation of The Tatras.
Already in the first phase of the campaign
more than 77 thousand stickers were sold.

The Company conforms to all  provisions 
of the Business Code per tinent to the 
protection of shareholders’ rights, especially
clauses on timely disclosure of all relevant
information on the Company and clauses on
convening and conducting its annual 
general meetings.

The Company respects the principle of equal
treatment of all shareholders and has adopted
principles of the Corporate Governance
Code in full .  The Company accepts all  
liabilities stemming from the law protecting
shareholders, employees, creditors, suppliers,
and customers.

In addition, the Company takes into account
all  own broader commitments towards
municipalities and other stakeholders with
whom it maintains and systematically develops
relations. As in the previous periods,
Slovnaft, a. s. was engaged in the creation
and annotation of strategic economic 
documents of the Government of the Slovak
Republic in 2004.

The Board is aware of its commitment 
to represent and promote shareholders’
interests,  and recognizes that it  is ful ly
accountable for the per formance and 
activit ies of the Slovnaf t Group. To help
ensure that the Company can meet share-
holders’ expectations in all areas, the Board
continually analyses and evaluates
entrepreneurial opportunities and ongoing
developments, both in the broader external
environment as well as within the operations
of the Slovnaft Group. The official, formal
channels of communication with the share-
holders include the Annual Repor t and
Accounts, and the quarterly results reports.
In addition, presentations about the business,
its performance and strategy are given to
shareholders at the Annual General Meeting
and at Extraordinar y General Meetings.
Further-more, investors can raise questions
at any time during the year, and are entitled
to ask questions or to make proposals 
at any General Meeting. Information is also
made available on Slovnaf t’s website
(www.slovnaft.sk), where a special section is
dedicated to shareholders and the financial
community.
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RReeppoorrtt  oonn  tthhee  SSuuppeerrvviissoorryy  BBooaarrdd’’ss  aaccttiivviittyy  
ooff  SSlloovvnnaafftt,,  aa..ss..  ffoorr  tthhee  ppeerriioodd  ssiinnccee  

tthhee  oorrddiinnaarryy  GGeenneerraall  MMeeeettiinngg  
ooff  2277tthh  ooff  MMaayy  22000044

TThhee  ssuubbmmiitttteedd  rreeppoorrtt  ooff  tthhee  SSuuppeerrvviissoorryy  BBooaarrdd  oonn  tthhee  bbuussiinneessss  yyeeaarr  22000044  hhaass  bbeeeenn  pprreeppaarreedd  bbaasseedd  oonn  tthhee  rreeppoorrttss  

ooff  BBooaarrdd  ooff  DDiirreeccttoorrss  aanndd  tthhee  aauuddiittoorr  aass  ttoo  tthhee  oorrddiinnaarryy  aanndd  ccoonnssoolliiddaatteedd  ffiinnaanncciiaall  ssttaatteemmeennttss  aanndd  rreegguullaarr  aasssseessssmmeenntt

ooff  tthhee  CCoommppaannyy’’ss  aaccttiivviittiieess..        

The Supervisory Board states that due to its previous investments and efficiency improvements as well as favorable

external environment the Company achieved good results and could further reduce its indebtedness.

The Board of Directors was reporting through the Chief Executive Officer to the Supervisory Board on a continuant

basis. During the year the Supervisory Board requested quarterly reports on the internal audit’s and security’s 

activities. 

In the opinion of the Supervisory Board the operation of the Company was in compliance with applicable laws, the

Articles of Association and decisions of the previous general meetings and focused on the maximization 

of the shareholders’ value. Based on the assessments of the Supervisory Board the activities of the Board of Directors

were performed in line with the approved Business Plan for 2004. The members of the Board of Directors complied with

their obligations to maintain the secrecy of confidential information and observed the provisions of § 196 of the

Commercial Code on the ban of competitive conduct. 

The employee representatives of the Supervisory Board participated actively at all meetings and paid a special 

attention to the issues affecting the status of the employees of Slovnaft, a.s. 

The Supervisory Board reviewed and discussed the audit of the both ordinary and consolidated financial statements for

the year 2004 conducted by Ernst & Young company in accordance with International standards on auditing. 

In the opinion of the Supervisory Board the ordinary and consolidated financial statements of Slovnaft, a.s. present 

fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Slovnaft, a. s. as of December 31, 2004 and the results 

of its operations, changes in equity and its cash flow for the year ended. 

Having verified and discussed the Board of Directors’ report about the Company’s operation in 2004 the Supervisory

Board recommends the General Meeting to approve the ordinary and consolidated financial statements for the year

2004. Further, the Supervisory Board agrees also with the proposal of the Board of Directors on the distribution of the

profits of 2004 and with the method of payments of dividend.

DDrr..  IIlloonnaa  BBáánnhheeggyyii

Supervisory Board Chairwoman

Done in Bratislava in April 2005
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RReeccoonncciilliiaattiioonn  ooff  tthhee  SSlloovvnnaafftt  GGrroouupp  pprrooffiitt  ffoorr
tthhee  yyeeaarr  eennddeedd  3311  DDeecceemmbbeerr  22000044  

(SKK million)

Consolidated profit according to the Slovak Accounting Standards 10,186)

Social Fund (16)

Goodwill impairment (170)

Other (together with impact of used foreign exchange rates for consolidation purposes) 21)

IIFFRRSS  ccoonnssoolliiddaatteedd  pprrooffiitt 1100,,002211)

EEqquuiittyy  rreeccoonncciilliiaattiioonn  ffoorr  tthhee  SSlloovvnnaafftt  GGrroouupp
ffoorr  tthhee  yyeeaarr  eennddeedd  3311  DDeecceemmbbeerr  22000044

SSuubbssiiddiiaarriieess GGooooddwwiillll

aanndd aanndd  nneeggaattiivvee CCoonnssoolliiddaattiioonn

SSlloovvnnaafftt,,  aa..ss.. AAssssoocciiaatteess ggooooddwwiill aaddjjuussttmmeennttss CCoonnssoolliiddaatteedd

(SKK million) (SKK million) (SKK million) (SKK million) (SKK million)

EEqquuiittyy  aaccccoorrddiinngg  ttoo  SSlloovvaakk  lleeggiissllaattiioonn

aass  aatt  3311  DDeecceemmbbeerr  22000033  iinncclluuddiinngg  MMiinnoorriittyy

iinntteerreesstt  ((wwiitthhoouutt  TTrraannssllaattiioonn  rreesseerrvvee)) 40,309) 3,358) (310) (3,897) 39,460)

Profit / (loss) for the period 9,693) (254) (130) 877) 10 186)

Dividends (2,733) -) -) -) (2,733)

Social Fund (114) (2) -) -) (116)

Other movements 35) -) -) (21) 14)

EEqquuiittyy  aaccccoorrddiinngg  ttoo  SSlloovvaakk  lleeggiissllaattiioonn

aass  aatt  3311  DDeecceemmbbeerr  22000044  iinncclluuddiinngg  MMiinnoorriittyy

iinntteerreesstt  ((wwiitthhoouutt  TTrraannssllaattiioonn  rreesseerrvvee)) 4477,,119900) 33,,110022) ((444400)) ((33,,004411)) 4466,,881111)

IIFFRRSS  iimmppaacctt

Minority interest (61)

Negative goodwill 440

Other (42)

IIFFRRSS  eeqquuiittyy 4477,,114488)
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IInnddeeppeennddeenntt  AAuuddiittoorr’’ss  RReeppoorrtt
ttoo  tthhee  SShhaarreehhoollddeerrss  ooff  SSlloovvnnaafftt,,  aa..ss..

SSlloovvnnaafftt  GGrroouupp
CCoonnssoolliiddaatteedd  ffiinnaanncciiaall  ssttaatteemmeennttss

ffoorr  tthhee  yyeeaarr  eennddeedd  3311  DDeecceemmbbeerr  22000044

PPrreeppaarreedd  iinn  aaccccoorrddaannccee  wwiitthh  IInntteerrnnaattiioonnaall  FFiinnaanncciiaall  RReeppoorrttiinngg  SSttaannddaarrddss

MMaarrcchh  22000055
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SSlloovvnnaafftt  GGrroouupp
CCoonnssoolliiddaatteedd  ffiinnaanncciiaall  ssttaatteemmeennttss

ffoorr  tthhee  yyeeaarr  eennddeedd  3311  DDeecceemmbbeerr  22000044

PPrreeppaarreedd  iinn  aaccccoorrddaannccee  wwiitthh  IInntteerrnnaattiioonnaall  FFiinnaanncciiaall  RReeppoorrttiinngg  SSttaannddaarrddss

MMaarrcchh  22000055
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IInnddeeppeennddeenntt  AAuuddiittoorr’’ss  RReeppoorrtt
ttoo  tthhee  SShhaarreehhoollddeerrss  ooff  SSlloovvnnaafftt,,  aa..ss..



SSlloovvnnaafftt,,  aa..ss..,,  aanndd  SSuubbssiiddiiaarriieess
CCoonnssoolliiddaatteedd  ffiinnaanncciiaall  ssttaatteemmeennttss

PPrreeppaarreedd  iinn  aaccccoorrddaannccee  wwiitthh  IInntteerrnnaattiioonnaall  FFiinnaanncciiaall  RReeppoorrttiinngg  SSttaannddaarrddss

3311  DDeecceemmbbeerr  22000044

Bratislava, 21 March 2005

VVrraattkkoo  KKaaššššoovviicc BBééllaa  KKeelleemmeenn

Chief Executive Officer Member of the Board of Directors

Member of the Board of Directors

The accounting policies and financial risk management on pages 34 — 43 and the notes on pages 44 — 62 form an integral part of these

consolidated financial statements.
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SSlloovvnnaafftt  GGrroouupp  
CCoonnssoolliiddaatteedd  ffiinnaanncciiaall  ssttaatteemmeennttss

ffoorr  tthhee  yyeeaarr  eennddeedd  3311  DDeecceemmbbeerr  22000044
GGeenneerraall  IInnffoorrmmaattiioonn

Slovnaft, a.s. (”the Company”) was registered in Slovakia as a joint stock company on 1 May 1992. Prior to that date it was a state owned 

enterprise. The Company is limited by shares and was set up in accordance with Slovak regulations. The company has its primary listing on the

Bratislava stock exchange. 

The principal activity of the Company, its subsidiaries and associates (”the Group”) the Group is the processing of crude oil, distribution and sale

of refined products.

The Company’s registered address is:

Slovnaft, a.s. 

Vlčie hrdlo

824 12  Bratislava

Slovak Republic

Since April 2003 the parent company of the Group is MOL Rt, Hungarian Oil and Gas Company, incorporated and domiciled in Hungary. 

These consolidated financial statements have been presented in millions of Slovak Crowns.

These consolidated financial statements have been approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 21 March 2005. 
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SSlloovvnnaafftt  GGrroouupp
CCoonnssoolliiddaatteedd  bbaallaannccee  sshheeeett  3311  ddeecceemmbbeerr  22000044

NNootteess 3311  ddeecceemmbbeerr  22000044 3311  ddeecceemmbbeerr  22000033

(in millions of Slovak crowns) (in millions of Slovak crowns)

AAsssseettss  

NNoonn--ccuurrrreenntt  aasssseettss

Intangible assets 1 426 711

Property, plant and equipment 2 40,714 37,524

Investments in associated companies 4 (i) 150 146

Available-for-sale financial assets 4 (ii) 1,360 -

Deferred tax assets 16 16 115

Other non-current assets 5 101 393

TToottaall  nnoonn--ccuurrrreenntt  aasssseettss 4422,,776677 3388,,888899

CCuurrrreenntt  aasssseettss

Inventories 6 4,834 4,474

Trade receivables, net 7 8,049 5,797

Income tax receivable 20 117

Other current assets 8 1,880 2,538

Available-for-sale financial asets 4 (ii) 2 17

Cash and cash equivalents 9 7,313 4,614

TToottaall  ccuurrrreenntt  aasssseettss 2222,,009988 1177,,555577

TToottaall  aasssseettss 6644,,886655 5566,,444466

EEqquuiittyy  aanndd  lliiaabbiilliittiieess

CCaappiittaall  aanndd  rreesseerrvveess

Share capital 10 20,625 20,625

Share premium 3,649 3,649

Reserves 12,853 13,138

Net income for the period 10,021 2,374

TToottaall  ccaappiittaall  aanndd  rreesseerrvveess 4477,,114488 3399,,778866

MMiinnoorriittyy  iinntteerreesstt 12 6633 6622

NNoonn--ccuurrrreenntt  lliiaabbiilliittiieess

Long-term debt net of current portion 13 1 -

Provisions for liabilities and charges 14 793 677

Deferred tax liability 16 74 -

Government grants and other non-current liabilities 15 831 792

TToottaall  nnoonn--ccuurrrreenntt  lliiaabbiilliittiieess 11,,669999 11,,446699

CCuurrrreenntt  lliiaabbiilliittiieess

Trade and other payables 17 12,597 11,545

Short-term debt 13 1 812

Current portion of long-term debt - 1,646

Income tax payable 1,593 7

Provisions for liabilities and charges 14 1,764 1,119

TToottaall  ccuurrrreenntt  lliiaabbiilliittiieess 1155,,995555 1155,,112299

TToottaall  lliiaabbiilliittiieess 1177,,665544 1166,,559988

TToottaall  eeqquuiittyy  aanndd  lliiaabbiilliittiieess 6644,,886655 5566,,444466

3300

The accounting policies and financial risk management on pages 34 — 43 and the notes on pages 44 — 62 form an integral part of these

consolidated financial statements.
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SSlloovvnnaafftt  GGrroouupp
CCoonnssoolliiddaatteedd  iinnccoommee  ssttaatteemmeenntt

ffoorr  tthhee  yyeeaarr  eennddeedd  3311  DDeecceemmbbeerr  22000044

YYeeaarr  eennddeedd YYeeaarr  eennddeedd

3311  DDeecceemmbbeerr 3311  DDeecceemmbbeerr

NNootteess 22000044 22000033

(in millions of Slovak crowns) (in millions of Slovak crowns)

Net Sales 18 85,170) 67,293)

Other operating income 19 (i) 964) 343)

TToottaall  ooppeerraattiinngg  rreevveennuueess 8866,,113344) 6677,,663399)

Raw material costs (incl. goods for resale (59,934) (51,536)

and net of work performed by the Group and capitalised)

Personnel expenses 20 (2,873) (2,906)

Depreciation, amortization and impairment 18 (3,839) (3,512)

Value of services used 19 (ii) (3,682) (3,578)

Change in inventories of finished goods and work in progress 25) 108)

Capitalised own production (6) 9)

Other operating expenses 19 (iii) (3,536) (3,402)

TToottaall  ooppeerraattiinngg  eexxppeennsseess ((7733,,884455)) ((6644,,880077))

OOppeerraattiinngg  pprrooffiitt 18 1122,,228899) 22,,883322)

Share of profit of associates 74) 27)

Net finance revenues 21 136) 648)

PPrrooffiitt  bbeeffoorree  ttaaxxaattiioonn 22 1122,,449999) 33,,550077)

Income tax expense 22 (2,477) (1,123)

PPrrooffiitt  aafftteerr  ttaaxxaattiioonn 1100,,002222) 22,,338844)

Minority interest 12 (1) (10)

NNeett  iinnccoommee 23 1100,,002211) 22,,337744)

EEaarrnniinnggss  ppeerr  sshhaarree  ((SSKKKK  ppeerr  sshhaarree)) 23 448855..99 111155..11

The accounting policies and financial risk management on pages 34 — 43 and the notes on pages 44 — 62 form an integral part of these

consolidated financial statements.



SSlloovvnnaafftt  GGrroouupp
CCoonnssoolliiddaatteedd  ssttaatteemmeenntt  ooff  cchhaannggeess  iinn  eeqquuiittyy

ffoorr  tthhee  yyeeaarr  eennddeedd  3311  DDeecceemmbbeerr  22000044

NNeett  iinnccoommee

SShhaarree SShhaarree TTrraannssllaattiioonn RReettaaiinneedd ffoorr  tthhee

ccaappiittaall pprreemmiiuumm rreesseerrvvee eeaarrnniinnggss ppeerriioodd TToottaall

(SKK million) (SKK million) (SKK million) (SKK million) (SKK million) (SKK million)

BBaallaannccee  aatt  11  JJaannuuaarryy  22000033 2200,,662255 33,,664499 ((4400)) 1100,,333377) 33,,005544) 3377,,662255)

Appropriation of net income - - -) 3,054) (3,054) -)

Translation differences - - (213) -) -) (213)

Net profit for the period - - -) -) 2,374) 2,374)

AAtt  3311  DDeecceemmbbeerr  22000033 2200,,662255 33,,664499 ((225533)) 1133,,339911) 22,,337744) 3399,,778866)

Appropriation of net income - - -) 2,374) (2,374) -)

Dividends declared - - -) (2,733) -) (2,733)

Translation differences - - 74) -) -) 74)

Net profit for the period - - -) -) 10,021) 10,021)

AAtt  3311  DDeecceemmbbeerr  22000044 2200,,662255 33,,664499 ((117799)) 1133,,003322) 1100,,002211) 4477,,114488)

3322

The accounting policies and financial risk management on pages 34 — 43 and the notes on pages 44 — 62 form an integral part of these

consolidated financial statements.
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SSlloovvnnaafftt  GGrroouupp
CCoonnssoolliiddaatteedd  ccaasshh  ffllooww  ssttaatteemmeenntt

ffoorr  tthhee  yyeeaarr  eennddeedd  3311  DDeecceemmbbeerr  22000044

NNootteess 22000044 22000033

(SKK million) (SKK million)

CCaasshh  fflloowwss  ffrroomm  ooppeerraattiinngg  aaccttiivviittiieess

Operating profit 12,289) 2,832)

AAddjjuussttmmeennttss  ttoo  rreeccoonncciillee  ooppeerraattiinngg  pprrooffiitt  ttoo  nneett  ccaasshh

pprroovviiddeedd  bbyy  ooppeerraattiinngg  aaccttiivviittiieess

Depreciation, amortisation and impairment 18 3,839) 3,512)

Amortisation of deferred income 15, 19 (i) (84) (32)

Net gain sale of fixed assets 19 (i) (15) (144)

Net increase in provisions for liabilities and charges 761) 769)

Other non-cash transactions (63) (10)

OOppeerraattiinngg  ccaasshh  ffllooww  bbeeffoorree  cchhaannggeess  iinn  wwoorrkkiinngg  ccaappiittaall

(Increase) in receivables (2,252) (188)

(Increase)/decrease in prepayments (149) 57)

(Increase)/decrease in inventories (628) 528)

(Increase)/(decrease) in trade payables 1,385) (584)

Increase in other payables -) 220)

Corporate taxes paid (621) (1,303)

NNeett  ccaasshh  ffrroomm  ooppeerraattiinngg  aaccttiivviittiieess 1144,,446622) 55,,665577)

CCaasshh  fflloowwss  ffrroomm  iinnvveessttiinngg  aaccttiivviittiieess

Capital expenditure (6,762) (4,417)

Government grants received 78) 67)

Proceeds from disposal of PP&E 162) 569)

Purchase of available-for-sale-investments (1,370) -)

Proceeds from disposal of available-for-sale-investments 40) 70)

Loans granted 1,062) (1,073)

Interest and other financial items received 332) 300)

Dividend received 23) 34)

NNeett  ccaasshh  uusseedd  iinn  iinnvveessttiinngg  aaccttiivviittiieess ((66,,443355)) ((44,,445500))

CCaasshh  fflloowwss  ffrroomm  ffiinnaanncciinngg  aaccttiivviittiieess

Repayments of borrowings (4,397) (262)

Proceeds from borrowings 1,971) 392)

Interest and other finance charges paid (203) (159)

Dividends paid to shareholders (2,700) (1)

NNeett  ccaasshh  uusseedd  iinn  ffiinnaanncciinngg  aaccttiivviittiieess ((55,,332299)) ((3300))

NNeett  ((ddeeccrreeaassee))//iinnccrreeaassee  iinn  ccaasshh  aanndd  ccaasshh  eeqquuiivvaalleennttss 22,,669988) 11,,117777)

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 9 4,231) 3,002)

Cash effect of consolidation of subsidiaries -) 153)

previously accounted for using equity method

Effects of exchange rate changes 32) (101)

CCaasshh  aanndd  ccaasshh  eeqquuiivvaalleennttss  aatt  eenndd  ooff  yyeeaarr 9 66,,996611) 44,,223311)

The accounting policies and financial risk management on pages 34 — 43 and the notes on pages 44 — 62 form an integral part of these

consolidated financial statements.
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SSlloovvnnaafftt  GGrroouupp
AAccccoouunnttiinngg  ppoolliicciieess

((ii)) BBaassiiss  ooff  pprreeppaarraattiioonn

The Company prepares its statutory unconsolidated and consolidated financial statements in accordance with the requirements of the Slovak

accounting legislation. Some of the accounting principles prescribed in this legislation differ from International Financial Reporting Standards

(“IFRS”). 

The accompanying consolidated financial statements of the Group have been prepared in accordance with and comply with International

Financial Reporting Standards issued by the International Accounting Standards Board. The consolidated financial statements have been 

prepared under the historical cost convention except as modified by the revaluation of available-for-sale investment securities, and financial

assets and financial liabilities held-for-trading. 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles requires the use of estimates 

and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date 

of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Although these estimates are based

on management’s best knowledge of current events and actions, actual results ultimately may differ from these estimates.

CChhaannggeess  iinn  aaccccoouunnttiinngg  ppoolliicciieess

The accounting policies adopted are consistent with those of the previous year except for an early adoption of IAS 21 (revised). The Company has

decided to adopt early the revised IAS 21 – The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates from 1 January 2004. Any goodwill arising on the

acquisition of a foreign subsidiary and any fair value adjustments to carrying amounts of assets and liabilities arising on the acquisition are now

treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign operation and translated at the closing rate accordingly. This change in the accounting policy has

no significant impact as at 31 December 2004 or 31 December 2003. 

IFRS 3 – Business Combinations applies to accounting for business combinations for which the agreement date is on or after 31 March 2004.

Upon acquisition the Group initially measures the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities acquired at their fair values as at the

acquisition date hence causing any minority interest in the acquiree to be stated at the minority’s proportions of the net fair values of those items.

Additionally, the adoption of IFRS 3 and IAS 36 has resulted in the Group ceasing annual goodwill amortisation and to test for impairment 

annually at the cash generating unit level (unless an event occurs during the year which requires the goodwill to be tested more frequently) 

in respect of these business combinations. Moreover, as required by the revised IAS 38 the useful life of intangible assets acquired in a business

combination are now assessed at the individual asset level as having either a finite or indefinite life. 

Where an intangible asset has a finite life, it has been amortised over its useful life. Amortisation years and methods for intangible assets with

finite useful lives are reviewed at the earlier of annually or where an indicator of impairment exists. Intangibles assessed as having indefinite 

useful lives are not amortised, as there is no foreseeable limit to the year over which the asset is expected to generate net cash inflows for the

Group. However, intangibles with indefinite useful lives are reviewed annually to ensure the carrying value does not exceed the recoverable

amount regardless of whether an indicator of impairment is present.



SSlloovvnnaafftt  GGrroouupp
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

((iiii))  GGrroouupp  aaccccoouunnttiinngg

11.. SSuubbssiiddiiaarryy  uunnddeerrttaakkiinnggss

Subsidiary undertakings, which are those entities in which the Group has an interest of more than one half of the voting rights or otherwise has

power to exercise control over the operations, are consolidated. 

Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which control is transferred to the Group and are no longer consolidated from the date that 

control ceases. The purchase method of accounting is used to account for the acquisition of subsidiaries. The excess of the cost of the acquisition

over the fair value of the net assets of the subsidiary acquired is recorded as goodwill. See note (iv) for the accounting policy on goodwill.

Minority interest is stated at the minority’s proportion of the fair value of the net assets. Intercompany transactions, balances and unrealised

gains on transactions between group companies are eliminated; unrealised losses are also eliminated unless cost cannot be recovered. Where

necessary, accounting policies for subsidiaries have been changed to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.

The equity and the net income attributable to minority shareholders’ interest are shown separately in the accompanying consolidated balance

sheets and the accompanying consolidated income statement respectively.

22.. AAssssoocciiaatteedd  uunnddeerrttaakkiinnggss

Investments in associates are accounted for by the equity method of accounting. Under this method the company’s share of the post-acquisition

profits or losses of associates is recognised in the income statement and its share of post-acquisition movements in reserves is recognised 

in reserves. The cumulative post-acquisition movements are adjusted against the cost of the investment. Associates are entities over which the

Group generally has between 20% and 50% of the voting rights, or over which the Group has significant influence, but which it does not control. 

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group and its associates are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s interest in the associates; 

unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred. The Group’s investment

in associates includes goodwill (net of accumulated amortisation) on acquisition. 

When the Group’s share of losses in an associate equals or exceeds its interest in the associate, the Group does not to recognise further losses,

unless the Group has incurred obligations or made payments on behalf of the associates. 

((iiiiii))  FFoorreeiiggnn  ccuurrrreennccyy  ttrraannssllaattiioonnss

11.. FFuunnccttiioonnaall  ccuurrrreennccyy

The Slovak crown (SKK) is considered to be the presentation currency of the consolidated financial statements as well as the functional currency

of the Company and its domestic subsidiaries. Subsidiaries with functional currencies differing from the Slovak crown are translated according

to the revised IAS 21, assets and liabilities at closing rates, income and expense items at the weighted average exchange rates for the year, with

all resulting exchange differences recognised in the translation reserve. On disposal of a foreign entity, the deferred cumulative amount 

recognised in equity relating to that particular foreign operation shall be recognised in the income statement. 

Exchange differences arising from the translation of the net investment in foreign entities and of borrowings and other currency instruments 

designated as hedges of such investments, are taken to shareholders’ equity. When a foreign entity is sold, such exchange differences 

are recognised in the income statement. 

22.. TTrraannssaaccttiioonnss  aanndd  bbaallaanncceess

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded in the functional currency exchange rate prevailing at the dates of the transactions.

Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from the translation of monetary assets and liabilities

denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in the income statement, except when deferred in equity as qualifying cash flow hedges.

Translation differences on debt securities and other monetary financial assets measured at fair value are included in foreign exchange gains and

losses.
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((iivv))  IInnttaannggiibbllee  aasssseettss

11..  GGooooddwwiillll

The excess of the cost of an acquisition over the Company's interest in the fair value of the net identifiable assets of subsidiaries acquired as at

the date of the exchange transaction is recorded as goodwill and recognised as an asset in the accompanying consolidated balance sheet.

Goodwill is carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses. Any goodwill arising on the acquisition 

of a foreign subsidiary are treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign operation and translated accordingly.

Goodwill is amortised using the straight-line method over its estimated useful life. Management determines the estimated useful life of goodwill

based on its evaluation of the respective companies at the time of the acquisition, considering factors such as existing market share, potential

growth and other factors inherent in the acquired companies. The unamortized balances are reviewed at each balance sheet date to assess the

probability of continuing future benefits. If there is an indication that goodwill may be impaired, the recoverable amount is determined for the

cash-generating unit to which the goodwill belongs. If the carrying amount is more than the recoverable amount, an impairment loss 

is recognised.

In respect of goodwill on business combinations for which the agreement date is on or after 31 March 2004, see (i). Business combinations prior

to 31 March 2004 have not been restated and amortization of goodwill shall discontinue from 1 January 2005.

22.. CCoommppuutteerr  ssooffttwwaarree

Costs associated with developing or maintaining computer software programmes are recognised as an expense as incurred. Costs that are

directly associated with identifiable and unique software products controlled by the Group and will probably generate economic benefits 

exceeding costs beyond one year, are recognised as intangible assets. Direct costs include staff costs of the software development team and an

appropriate portion of relevant overheads.

Expenditure which enhances or extends the performance of computer software programmes beyond their original specifications is recognised

as a capital improvement and added to the original cost of the software. Computer software development costs recognised as assets 

are amortised using the straight-line method over their useful lives, not exceeding a period of 5 years.

33.. OOtthheerr  iinnttaannggiibbllee  aasssseettss

Other intangible assets are measured initially at cost. Other intangible assets are recognised if it is probable that the future economic benefits

that are attributable to the asset will flow to the enterprise; and the cost of the asset can be measured reliably. After initial recognition, other 

intangible assets are measured at cost less accumulated amortisation and any accumulated impairment losses. Other intangible assets are 

amortised on a straight-line basis over the best estimate of their useful lives. The amortisation period and the amortisation method are reviewed

annually at each financial year-end.

((vv))  PPrrooppeerrttyy,,  ppllaanntt  aanndd  eeqquuiippmmeenntt

Property, plant and equipment other than land are carried at cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses. Cost includes all

costs directly attributable to bringing the asset to working condition and location for its intended use, and borrowing costs directly attributable

to the construction of that asset, to the extent that they accrue in respect of the period of construction.

Land owned at the date of incorporation has been stated at the values attributed to it in the legislation incorporating the Company. These values

are treated as cost. Land is carried at cost less any impairment provisions. Land is not depreciated.

Construction in progress represents plant and properties under construction and is stated at cost. This includes cost of construction, plant and

equipment and other direct costs. Construction-in-progress is not depreciated until such time as the relevant assets are completed and put into

operational use.

Depreciation is recorded by a charge to the income statement computed on a straight-line basis so as to reduce the cost of the assets to their 

estimated residual values over their remaining useful economic lives.

SSlloovvnnaafftt  GGrroouupp
ACCOUNTING POLICIES
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TThhee  uusseeffuull  eeccoonnoommiicc  lliivveess  uusseedd  aarree  aass  ffoolllloowwss::

Years

Buildings 30 — 40

Plant and machinery 8 — 15

Other fixed assets 4 — 8

The useful life and depreciation methods are reviewed periodically to ensure that the method and period of depreciation are consistent with the

expected pattern of economic benefits from items of property, plant and equipment. 

Gains and losses arising from disposals are determined by comparing the proceeds with the carrying amount and are included in operating profit.

Interest costs on borrowings to finance the construction of property, plant and equipment are capitalised, during the period of time that is

required to complete and prepare the asset for its intended use. All other borrowing costs are expensed.

Repairs and maintenance are charged to the income statement during the financial period in which they are incurred. The cost of major 

renovations is included in the carrying amount of the asset when it is probable that future economic benefits in excess of the originally assessed

standard of performance of the existing asset will flow to the Group. Major renovations are depreciated over the remaining useful life of the 

related asset.

((vvii))  IImmppaaiirrmmeenntt  ooff  aasssseettss

Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the

carrying amount of an asset may not be recoverable. Whenever the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount, an impairment

loss is recognised in the income statement for items of property, plant and equipment and intangibles carried at cost. The recoverable amount is

the higher of an asset's net selling price and value in use. The net selling price is the amount obtainable from the sale of an asset in an arm's length

transaction while value in use is the present value of estimated future cash flows expected to arise from the continuing use of an asset and from

its disposal at the end of its useful life. Recoverable amounts are estimated for individual assets or, if this is not practicable, for the cash-generating

unit. Impairment losses are reviewed annually and, where the recoverable amount of an asset has changed, are increased or written back, fully or

partially, as required.

((vviiii))  LLeeaasseess

Leases of property, plant and equipment where the Group has substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are classified as finance leases.

Finance leases are capitalised at the inception of the lease at the lower of the fair value of the leased property or the present value 

of the minimum lease payments. 

Each lease payment is allocated between the liability and finance charges so as to achieve a constant rate on the finance balance outstanding.

The corresponding rental obligations, net of finance charges, are included in other long-term payables. The interest element of the finance cost

is charged to the income statement over the lease period. The property, plant and equipment acquired under finance leases is depreciated over

the shorter of the useful life of the asset or the lease term. 

Leases where a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor are classified as operating leases. Payments

made under operating leases (net of any incentives received from the lessor) are charged to the income statement on a straight-line basis over

the period of the lease.
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((vviiiiii))  IInnvveessttmmeennttss

Investments are classified into the following three categories: held-to-maturity, trading and available-for-sale. Investments with fixed 

or determinable payments and fixed maturity that the company has the positive intent and ability to hold to maturity are classified 

as held-to-maturity investments.Investments acquired principally for the purpose of generating a profit from short-term fluctuations in price are

classified as trading. All other investments, other than loans and receivables originated by the company, are classified as available-for-sale.

Held-to-maturity investments are included in non-current assets unless they mature within 12 months of the balance sheet date. Held-to-maturity

investments are carried at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method.

Available-for-sale investments are classified as current assets if management intends to realize them within 12 months of the balance sheet date.

These investments are initially measured at cost, which is the fair value of the consideration given for them, including transaction costs. 

Available-for-sale and trading investments are subsequently carried at fair value, the change of which is recorded in the equity. 

If there is objective evidence that the investments are impaired, the cumulative net loss is recognized in the income statement for the period.

Purchases and sales of investments are recognized on settlement date which is the date when the asset is delivered to the counterparty.

((iixx))  IInnvveennttoorriieess

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. The cost of finished goods and work in progress comprises raw materials,

direct labour, other direct costs and related production overheads (based on normal operating capacity) but excludes borrowing costs. 

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the costs of completion and selling expenses.

((xx))  TTrraaddee  rreecceeiivvaabblleess

Trade receivables are carried at original invoice amount less provision made for impairment of these receivables. A provision for impairment 

of trade receivables is established when there is objective evidence that the Group will not be able to collect all amounts due according to the

original terms of the receivables. The amount of the provision is the difference between the carrying amount and the recoverable amount, being

the present value of expected cash flows, discounted at the initial market rate of interest for similar borrowers.

((xxii))  CCaasshh  aanndd  ccaasshh  eeqquuiivvaalleennttss

Cash and cash equivalents are carried in the balance sheet at cost. For the purposes of the cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents 

comprise cash on hand, deposits held at call with banks and other short-term highly liquid investments with remaining three months or less to

maturity from the date of acquisition and that are subject to an insignificant risk of change in value.

((xxiiii))  SShhaarree  ccaappiittaall

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. External costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares, other than on a business combination, are

shown as a deduction, net of tax, in equity from the proceeds.

((xxiiiiii))  DDiivviiddeennddss

Dividends on ordinary shares are recognised in the Group’s accounts in the period in which they are approved by the Group’s shareholders.

SSlloovvnnaafftt  GGrroouupp
ACCOUNTING POLICIES
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((xxiivv))  PPrroovviissiioonnss  

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow

of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation can be

made. Provisions are reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate. 

The amount of the provision is the present value of the risk adjusted expenditures expected to be required to settle the obligation, determined

using the estimated risk free interest rate as discount rate. Where discounting is used, the carrying amount of provision increases in each period

to reflect the unwinding of the discount by the passage of time. This increase is recognised as interest expense.

Environmental provisions are recognised in respect of obligating events, i.e. settlement of the obligation can be enforced by law; or the event 

creates valid expectations in other parties that the enterprise will discharge the obligation and the outcome can reasonably be estimated.

((xxvv))  BBoorrrroowwiinnggss

Borrowings are recognised initially at the proceeds received, net of transaction costs incurred. In subsequent periods, borrowings are stated 

at amortised cost using the effective yield method; any difference between proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption value

is recognised in the income statement over the period of the borrowings.

((xxvvii))  IInnccoommee  ttaaxxeess

Deferred income tax is provided, using the liability method, for all temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets and liabilities

and their carrying values for financial reporting purposes. Tax rates enacted or substantially enacted by the balance sheet date are used 

to determine deferred income tax. Deferred tax assets are recognised when it is probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available against

which the deferred tax assets can be utilised. 

At each balance sheet date, the Group re-assesses unrecognised deferred tax assets and the carrying amount of deferred tax assets. The Group

recognises a previously unrecognised deferred tax asset to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profit will allow the

deferred tax asset to be recovered. 

Deferred income tax is provided on temporary differences arising on investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures, except where the

timing of the reversal of the temporary difference can be controlled and it is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse 

in the foreseeable future.

((xxvviiii))  RReevveennuuee  rreeccooggnniittiioonn

Revenue comprises the invoiced value for the sale of goods and services net of value-added tax, rebates and discounts, and after eliminating

sales within the Group. Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when significant risks and rewards of ownership of the goods are trans-

ferred to the buyer. Revenue from rendering of services is based on the stage of completion determined by reference to services performed to

date as a percentage of total services to be performed. Other revenues earned by the Group are recognised on the following bases:

Interest income — on an effective yield basis.

Dividend income — when the Group’s right to receive payment is established.
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((xxvviiiiii))  EEmmppllooyyeeee  bbeenneeffiittss  

11.. PPeennssiioonn  ppllaannss

A defined benefit plan is a pension plan that defines an amount of pension benefit to be provided, usually as a function of one or more factors

such as age, years of service or compensation. A defined contribution plan is a pension plan under which the Group pays fixed contributions and

will have no legal or constructive obligations to pay further contributions if the scheme does not hold sufficient assets to pay all employees 

benefits relating to employee service in the current and prior periods.

22.. UUnnffuunnddeedd  ddeeffiinneedd  bbeenneeffiitt  ppeennssiioonn  ppllaann

According to the contract with the Trade Unions for the year 2004 the Group is obliged, based on the number of years in service, 

to pay its employees on retirement or disability a multiple of their average monthly salary up to 10 average salaries. The minimum requirement of

the Labour Code of one-month average salary payment on retirement is included in the above multiples. 

The same or similar liability has been included in the contracts with the Trade Unions since 1992. The Group has created expectations on the part

of its employees that it will continue to provide the benefits and it is the management’s judgement that it is not realistic for Group to cease 

providing them.

The liability in respect of defined benefit pension plans is the present value of the defined benefit obligation at the balance sheet date, together

with adjustments for actuarial gains/losses and past service cost. The defined benefit obligation is calculated annually by independent actuaries

using the projected unit credit method. The present value of the defined benefit obligation is determined by the estimated future cash outflows

using interest rates of government securities which have terms to maturity approximating the terms of the related liability. 

Actuarial gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are charged or credited to income when

incurred. Amendments to pension plans are charged or credited to income over the average remaining service lives of the related employees.

33.. DDeeffiinneedd  ccoonnttrriibbuuttiioonn  ppeennssiioonn  ppllaannss

The Group contributes to the government and private defined contribution pension plans. 

The Group makes contributions to the Government’s health, retirement benefit and unemployment schemes at the statutory rates in force during

the year, based on gross salary payments. Throughout the year, the Group made contributions amounting to 35.2% (2003: 38%) of gross salaries

up to a monthly salary between SKK 22 thousand to SKK 43 thousand to such schemes, together with contributions by employees of a further

13.4% (2003: 12.8%). The cost of these payments is charged to the income statement in the same period as the related salary cost.

In addition, with respect to employees who have chosen to participate in a supplementary pension scheme, the Group makes contributions to the

supplementary scheme amounting up to 3% from the total of monthly tariff wage in addition to an amount variable for each employee based on

number of years worked.

44.. TTeerrmmiinnaattiioonn  bbeenneeffiittss

Termination benefits are payable whenever an employee’s employment is terminated before the normal retirement date or whenever an employee

accepts voluntary redundancy in exchange for these benefits. The Group recognises termination benefits when it is demonstrably committed to

either terminate the employment of current employees according to a detailed formal plan without possibility of withdrawal or to provide 

termination benefits as a result of an offer made to encourage voluntary redundancy. Benefits falling due more than 12 months after balance

sheet date are discounted to present value.

SSlloovvnnaafftt  GGrroouupp
ACCOUNTING POLICIES
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55.. PPrrooffiitt  sshhaarriinngg  aanndd  bboonnuuss  ppllaannss

A liability for employee benefits in the form of profit sharing and bonus plans is recognised in other liabilities. Profit sharing and bonus plans are

divided into short-term and long-term. The short-term portion of the bonus is paid out after the evaluation of the performance in the given year

and recognised in other liabilities. The payment of the long-term portion is deferred after the third year of the given year including the given year.

The payment of the long-term portion is subject to the approval of the annual general meeting and is recognised in other non-current liabilities.

Liabilities for profit sharing and bonus plans are measured at the amounts expected to be paid when they are settled.

66.. OOtthheerr

The Group also pays certain work and life jubilees benefits and disability benefits.

The liability in respect of work and life jubilees benefits plan is the present value of the work and life jubilees benefit obligation at the balance

sheet date, together with adjustments for actuarial gains/losses and past service cost. The work and life jubilees benefit obligation is calculated

annually by independent actuaries using the projected unit credit method. The present value of the work and life jubilees benefit obligation is

determined by the estimated future cash outflows using interest rates of government securities which have terms to maturity approximating the

terms of the related liability. 

Actuarial gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are charged or credited to income when

incurred. Amendments to work and life jubilees benefit plan are charged or credited to income over the average remaining service lives of the

related employees.

((xxiixx))  GGoovveerrnnmmeenntt  ggrraannttss  rreellaattiinngg  ttoo  ppuurrcchhaassee  ooff  pprrooppeerrttyy,,  ppllaanntt  aanndd  eeqquuiippmmeenntt

Government grants relating to the purchase of property, plant and equipment are included in non current liabilities as deferred income and are

credited to the income statement on a straight line basis over the expected lives of the related assets.

((xxxx))  SSeeggmmeennttaall  ddiisscclloossuurree

For management purposes the Group is organised into three major operating business units: Refining and Marketing, Petrochemicals and

Corporate and Other. The business units are the basis upon which the Group reports its primary segment information. Geographical segments

provide products or services within a particular economic environment that is subject to risks and returns that are different from those 

of components operating in other economic environments.

((xxxxii))  CCoonnttiinnggeenncciieess

Contingent liabilities are not recognised in the accompanying consolidated financial statements. They are disclosed in the Notes unless 

the possibility of an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits is remote. A contingent asset is not recognised in the accompanying 

consolidated financial statements but disclosed when an inflow of economic benefits is probable.

((xxxxiiii))  CCoommppaarraattiivveess

Where necessary, comparative figures have been adjusted to conform with changes in presentation in the current year.
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SSlloovvnnaafftt  GGrroouupp
FFiinnaanncciiaall  rriisskk  mmaannaaggeemmeenntt

11  FFiinnaanncciiaall  iinnssttrruummeennttss

((ii)) FFaaiirr  vvaalluuee  ooff  ffiinnaanncciiaall  iinnssttrruummeennttss

Financial instruments in the balance sheet include investments, other non-current assets, trade receivables, other current assets, cash and cash

equivalents, short-term and long-term debt, other long-term liabilities, trade and other payables. Derivatives are presented as other non-current

assets, other current assets and trade and other payables. The estimated fair values of these instruments approximate their carrying amounts.

((iiii))  CCoommmmooddiittyy  pprriiccee  rriisskk  mmaannaaggeemmeenntt

The Group, an integrated oil-downstream and petrochemical group,is exposed to commodity price risk on both the purchasing side and the sales

side. The main commodity risks are long refinery margin position and long petrochemical margin position. In 2004, we subordinated to, 

and integrated our risk management strategy into the overall MOL Group one, in order to further deploy portfolio effects among several MOL

Group businesses. In 2004, the Group did not carry out any derivative transaction.

((iiiiii))  FFoorreeiiggnn  eexxcchhaannggee  rriisskk

The Company’s currency risks arise mainly as a result of its significant USD-based crude oil purchases from abroad. The sales prices 

of oil products are in USD and petrochemical products are in EUR. The Company’s net cash flow position is long USD and long EUR. In order to

protect itself from short-term foreign exchange fluctuations, the Company enters into deliverable foreign exchange forward agreements.

((iivv))  IInntteerreesstt  rraattee  rriisskk

The Company policy is to ensure that not less than 25% but not more than 75% of its exposure to changes in interest rates is on a fixed rate basis. 

In 2004, due to strong cash generation and moderate capital expenditures the Group reduced external debt to zero by 31 December 2004. 

In August 2004, the Company repaid last long-term syndicated bank loan in the amount of USD 50 million. By this, interest rate is no more linked

to a market price of crude oil if the market price falls below a certain level, a crude oil option embedded in this loan agreement expired.

((vv))  LLiiqquuiiddiittyy  rriisskk  

The Company policy is to maintain sufficient cash and cash equivalents or have available funding through an adequate amount of credit facilities

to cover the liquidity risk in accordance with its financing strategy. The amount of credit facilities as of 31 December 2004 consists 

of the following:

3311  DDeecceemmbbeerr  22000044 3311  DDeecceemmbbeerr  22000033

(SKK million) (SKK million)

Long-term loan facilities of the Group 0 7,078

Short-term loan facilities of the Group 5,201 5,074

TToottaall  llooaann  ffaacciilliittiieess  aavvaaiillaabbllee 55,,220011 1122,,115522
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SSlloovvnnaafftt  GGrroouupp
FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group has utilised SKK 2,271 million (31 December 2003: SKK 3,479 million) from these facilities for obtaining bank guaranties, letters of

credit and loans drawn down.

In August 2004, the Group repaid last long-term syndicated bank loan in the amount of USD 50 million and terminated prematurely the long-term

syndicated loan in the amount of USD 165 million.

During 2004, the Group occasionally used its available short-term credit lines in order to bridge temporary financial needs. Credit lines were used

dominantly for bank guarantees and Letter of Credits securing Group’s liabilities toward customs authorities and certain contractors.

((vvii))  CCrreeddiitt  rriisskk

The Group provides a variety of customers with products and services, none of whom, based on volume and creditworthiness, present significant

credit risk, individually or aggregated. Group procedures are operative to ensure that sales are made to customers with appropriate credit 

history and do not exceed an acceptable credit exposure limit either on individual or aggregated basis.

Based on successful practice of other MOL Group company, the Group launched credit insurance policy for Petrochemical Division from July

2004. 

The maximum exposure to credit risk is represented by the carrying amount of each financial asset is net of any impairment.

22  AAccccoouunnttiinngg  ffoorr  ddeerriivvaattiivvee  ffiinnaanncciiaall  iinnssttrruummeennttss

Derivative financial instruments, mainly short-term foreign exchange contracts, are initially recognised in the balance sheet at cost (including

transaction costs) and subsequently are re-measured at their fair value. Fair values are obtained from quoted market prices, discounted cash flow

models and options pricing models as appropriate. All derivatives are carried as assets when fair value is positive and as liabilities when fair value

is negative. Changes in the fair value of derivatives are included in income.

Certain derivatives embedded in other financial instruments are treated as separate derivatives when their risks and characteristics are not

closely related to those of the host contract and the host contract is not carried at fair value with unrealised gains and losses reported in income

statement.

33  FFaaiirr  vvaalluuee  eessttiimmaattiioonn

The fair value of publicly traded derivatives and trading and available-for-sale securities is based where possible on quoted market prices at the

balance sheet date. The fair value of forward foreign exchange contracts is determined using forward exchange market rates at the balance sheet

date. Where quoted market prices are not available the fair value is determined using estimation techniques if appropriate. The fair value of

embedded derivatives is determined using appropriate valuation models.

The face values less any estimated credit adjustments for financial assets and liabilities with a maturity of less than one year are assumed to

approximate their fair values. The fair value of financial liabilities for disclosure purposes is estimated by discounting the future contractual cash

flows at the current market interest rate available to the Group for similar financial instruments.
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SSlloovvnnaafftt  GGrroouupp
NNootteess  ttoo  tthhee  ccoonnssoolliiddaatteedd  ffiinnaanncciiaall  ssttaatteemmeennttss

aatt  3311  DDeecceemmbbeerr  22000044

11  IInnttaannggiibbllee  aasssseettss

OOtthheerr

iinnttaannggiibbllee

SSooffttwwaarree GGooooddwwiillll aasssseettss TToottaall

(SKK million) (SKK million) (SKK million) (SKK million)

YYeeaarr  eennddeedd  3311  DDeecceemmbbeerr  22000044

Net book value at 1 January 2004 187) 300) 224) 711)

Additions 72) -) 33) 105)

Disposals (1) -) (2) (3)

Amortisation and impairment (78) (300) (10) (388)

Foreign exchange effect -) -) 1) 1)

NNeett  bbooookk  vvaalluuee  aatt  3311  DDeecceemmbbeerr  22000044 118800) --) 224466) 442266)

Cost 593) 335) 626) 1,554)

Accumulated amortisation (413) (335) (380) (1,128)

NNeett  bbooookk  vvaalluuee  aatt  3311  DDeecceemmbbeerr  22000044 118800) --) 224466) 442266)

YYeeaarr  eennddeedd  3311  DDeecceemmbbeerr  22000033

Net book value at 1 January 2003 166) 322) 178) 666)

Additions 114) -) 148) 262)

Disposals -) -) (16) (16)

Amortisation and impairment (93) (22) (84) (199)

Foreign exchange effect -) -) (2) (2)

NNeett  bbooookk  vvaalluuee  aatt  3311  DDeecceemmbbeerr  22000033 118877) 330000) 222244) 771111)

Cost 620) 335) 595) 1,550)

Accumulated amortisation (433) (35) (371) (839)

NNeett  bbooookk  vvaalluuee  aatt  3311  DDeecceemmbbeerr  22000033 118877) 330000) 222244) 771111)

For the year ended 31 December 2004:

• Software is being amortised evenly over its useful economic life of 5 years.

• Other intangible assets mainly include acquired licences which are being amortised evenly over its useful economic life of 5 years

• Goodwill arose on the acquisition of MOL Slovensko, s.r.o. and was amortised over the directors’ estimate of its useful economic life 

of 15 years. Following the impairment review of the recoverable amount of the related cash generating unit the carrying amount of good

will was fully impaired. 



SSlloovvnnaafftt  GGrroouupp
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AT 31 DECEMBER 2004

22  PPrrooppeerrttyy,,  ppllaanntt  aanndd  eeqquuiippmmeenntt

OOtthheerr

LLaanndd PPllaanntt mmaacchhiinneerryy CCoonnssttrruuccttiioonnss

&&  bbuuiillddiinnggss &&  mmaacchhiinneerryy &&  eeqquuiippmmeenntt iinn  pprrooggrreessss TToottaall

(SKK million) (SKK million) (SKK million) (SKK million) (SKK million)

YYeeaarr  eennddeedd  3311  DDeecceemmbbeerr  22000044

Net book value at 1 January 2004 19,649) 13,233) 138) 4,504) 37,524)

Additions 14) 30) -) 6,788) 6,832)

Transfers 2,020) 3,283) 27) (5,330) -)

Disposals (130) (65) (4) (158) (357)

Depreciation charge (584) (2,338) (13) -) (2,935)

Impairment loss (337) (62) (1) 1) (399)

Foreign exchange effect 41) 6) 1) 1) 49)

NNeett  bbooookk  vvaalluuee  aatt  3311  DDeecceemmbbeerr  22000044 2200,,667733) 1144,,008877) 114488) 55,,880066) 4400,,771144)

AAtt  3311  DDeecceemmbbeerr  22000044

Cost 29,264) 39,754) 220) 5,837) 75,075)

Accumulated depreciation and impairment (8,591) (25,667) (72) (31) (34,361)

NNeett  bbooookk  vvaalluuee  aatt  3311  DDeecceemmbbeerr  22000044 2200,,667733) 1144,,008877) 114488) 55,,880066) 4400,,771144)

YYeeaarr  eennddeedd  3311  DDeecceemmbbeerr  22000033

Net book value at 1 January 2003 19,286) 14,100) 153) 2,069) 35,608)

First time consolidation of subsidiaries 406) 163) 2) 34) 605)

previously accounted for using equity method

Additions -) -) -) 5,154) 5,154)

Transfers 1,170) 1,507) 8) (2,685) -)

Disposals (472) 97) (19) (24) (418)

Depreciation charge (586) (2,619) (5) (17) (3,227)

Impairment loss (74) -) -) (12) (86)

Foreign exchange effect (81) (15) (1) (15) (112)

NNeett  bbooookk  vvaalluuee  aatt  3311  DDeecceemmbbeerr  22000033 1199,,664499) 1133,,223333) 113388) 44,,550044) 3377,,552244)

AAtt  3311  DDeecceemmbbeerr  22000033

Cost 27,357) 36,904) 180) 4,504) 68,945)

Accumulated depreciation and impairment loss (7,708) (23,671) (42) -) (31,421)

NNeett  bbooookk  vvaalluuee  aatt  3311  DDeecceemmbbeerr  22000033 1199,,664499) 1133,,223333) 113388) 44,,550044) 3377,,552244)

FFuullllyy  DDeepprreecciiaatteedd  PPrrooppeerrttyy,,  PPllaanntt  aanndd  EEqquuiippmmeenntt

The gross carrying amounts of certain property, plant and equipment items of SKK 14,813 million (31 December 2003: SKK 12,820 million) are

fully depreciated but these items are still in active use.

GGoovveerrnnmmeenntt  ggrraannttss

Property, plant and equipment includes assets with carrying value of SKK 806 million (31 December 2003: SKK 782 million) financed from state

grants (Note 15). Part of these assets with carrying value of SKK 237 million (31 December 2003: SKK 395 million) are in the course 

of construction and the rest are currently used for commercial purposes. All of these assets are currently owned by the Company and were

designed and constructed to serve State Authorities, including military forces, in state emergencies. In such situations title to these assets may be

restricted.

IImmppaaiirrmmeenntt  cchhaarrggee

The impairment loss of SKK 399 million (31 December 2003: SKK 86 million) relates to assets to be disposed of. The recoverable amount 

(the higher of the value in use or net selling price) was determined at the individual assets level. The net selling price was determined by reference

to market prices for equivalent assets. The impairment loss of SKK 312 million relates to Refining and marketing segment the rest to Corporate and

other.
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33  PPrriinncciippaall  ssuubbssiiddiiaarriieess

PPrriinncciippaall  ssuubbssiiddiiaarriieess  aatt  3311  DDeecceemmbbeerr  22000044  wweerree  aass  ffoolllloowwss::

CCoouunnttrryy BBuussiinneessss OOwwnneerrsshhiipp OOwwnneerrsshhiipp

CCoommppaannyy  nnaammee ooff  iinnccoorrppoorraattiioonn aaccttiivviittyy 22000044 22000033

RReeffiinniinngg  aanndd  mmaarrkkeettiinngg

Slovnaft Česká republika, s.r.o. Czech Republic Wholesale and retail 100% 100%

Slovnaft Montáže a opravy, a.s. Slovakia Repairs & maintenance 100% 100%

Apollo Oil Rohstoffhandels GmbH Austria Crude oil trading 67% 67%

Slovnaft Polska SA Poland Wholesale and retail 100% 100%

MOL Slovensko, s.r.o. Slovakia Wholesale and retail 100% 100%

Slovnaft Trans, a.s. Slovakia Transport 100% 100%

Slovnaft VÚRUP, a.s. Slovakia Research & development 100% 100%

Slovnaft Ukrajina, s.r.o. Ukraine Wholesale trade 89% 89%

Ukrslovnaft Ukraine Retail trade 85% 85%

SWS, s.r.o. Slovakia Transport support services 51% 51%

CCoorrppoorraattee  aanndd  ootthheerr

Slovnaft Rekreacentrum, a.s. Slovakia Operation of recreation facilities 100% 100%

The activities of the undertakings shown above are for the most part connected with the principal activity of the Group. All subsidiaries are unlisted.

Holdings are in the ordinary share capital of the undertaking concerned.

44  OOtthheerr  iinnvveessttmmeennttss

((ii))  IInnvveessttmmeennttss  iinn  aassssoocciiaatteedd  ccoommppaanniieess

NNeett  bbooookk NNeett  bbooookk

vvaalluuee  ooff vvaalluuee  ooff

iinnvveessttmmeenntt iinnvveessttmmeenntt

CCoommppaannyy CCoouunnttrryy BBuussiinneessss OOwwnneerrsshhiipp OOwwnneerrsshhiipp 22000044 22000033

nnaammee ooff  iinnccoorrppoorraattiioonn aaccttiivviittyy 22000044 22000033 (SKK million) (SKK million)

RReeffiinniinngg  aanndd  mmaarrkkeettiinngg

Messer Slovnaft, s.r.o. Slovakia Production of technical gases 49.00% 49.00% 97.0 95.0

CCoorrppoorraattee  aanndd  ootthheerr

Chémia, a.s. Slovakia Services 49.00% 49.00% 53.0 51.4

Petrimex, a.s. Slovakia Trading of chemicals 33.18% 33.18% - -

TToottaall 115500..00 114466..44
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((iiii))  AAvvaaiillaabbllee  ffoorr  ssaallee  ffiinnaanncciiaall  aasssseettss

NNeett  bbooookk NNeett  bbooookk

vvaalluuee  ooff vvaalluuee  ooff

iinnvveessttmmeenntt iinnvveessttmmeenntt

CCoommppaannyy CCoouunnttrryy BBuussiinneessss OOwwnneerrsshhiipp OOwwnneerrsshhiipp 22000044 22000033

nnaammee ooff  iinnccoorrppoorraattiioonn aaccttiivviittyy 22000044 22000033 (SKK million) (SKK million)

NNoonn--ccuurrrreenntt

CHZP Apollo Slovakia Health insurance 51.00% 51.00% - -

TVK Rt. Hungary Petrochemical production and trading 8.03% 0.01% 1,360.0 0.3

TToottaall 11,,336600..00 00..33

CCuurrrreenntt

Incheba, a.s. Slovakia Organising of exhibitions 0.59% 0.59% 1.0 1.0

Inaco, a.s. Slovakia Retail, wholesale 5.60% 5.60% - 7.0

Theben, a.s. Slovakia Editing of publications 7.71% 7.71% - 5.0

SKB, a.s. Slovakia Bank house 6.85% 6.85% - -

Tradeinvest, a.s. Slovakia Intermediary activities 6.08% 6.08% 1.0 4.0

TToottaall 22..00 1177..00

CHZP Apollo – Health Insurance Company (51% ownership) is not fully consolidated but is presented within Other Investments at nil value as it

is a non-profit making organisation from which no return is expected and to which there are no ongoing obligations.

According to the share purchase agreement between Hermész Kft. (majority owned subsidiary of MOL Rt.) and the Company signed on 8

December 2004, Hermész Kft. sold its 8.02% stake in TVK Rt. to the Company. TVK Rt. is fully consolidated subsidiary of MOL Rt. Hermész Kft.

also entered into call and put options with the same strike price. The options are exercisable only upon occurrence of restricted triggering events

of low probability within a period ending 31 December 2005. 

As there is no active market for TVK shares and other techniques cannot estimate the fair value of the investment and the options with sufficient

reliability they are carried at their cost (31 December 2004: SKK 1,360 million and 31 December 2003: SKK 0 million).

55  OOtthheerr  nnoonn--ccuurrrreenntt  aasssseettss

3311  DDeecceemmbbeerr  22000044 3311  DDeecceemmbbeerr  22000033

(SKK million) (SKK million)

Long-term receivables 62 64

Advance payments for assets under construction 39 329

TToottaall 110011 339933

Long-term receivables are shown after impairment provision in amount of SKK 75 million (31 December 2003: 76 million).
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66  IInnvveennttoorriieess

AAtt  ccoosstt AAtt  NNRRVV AAtt  ccoosstt AAtt  NNRRVV

3311  DDeecceemmbbeerr 3311  DDeecceemmbbeerr 3311  DDeecceemmbbeerr 3311  DDeecceemmbbeerr

22000044 22000044 22000033 22000033

(SKK million) (SKK million) (SKK million) (SKK million)

Raw materials 1,628 1,526 1,469 1,297

Work in progress and semi-finished products 1,607 1,607 1,525 1,525

Finished goods 1,400 1,400 1,456 1,456

Goods for resale 299 299 196 196

TToottaall 44,,993344 44,,883344 44,,664466 44,,447744

Inventories include catalysts consumables of SKK 301 million (31 December 2003: SKK 269 million) used in the production process within one

year. As in previous periods these were presented within other current assets comparative figures have been adjusted to conform current year

presentation.

77  TTrraaddee  rreecceeiivvaabblleess

3311  DDeecceemmbbeerr 22000044 3311  DDeecceemmbbeerr 22000033

(SKK million) (SKK million)

Trade receivables 8,784) 7,024)

Impairment provision (735) (1,227)

TToottaall  (Note 18) 88,,004499) 55,,779977)

88  OOtthheerr  ccuurrrreenntt  aasssseettss

3311  DDeecceemmbbeerr 22000044 3311  DDeecceemmbbeerr 22000033

(SKK million) (SKK million)

VAT, excise and other tax receivables 1,068) 741)

Loan to MOL Plc. (Note 27) -) 1,070)

Other receivables 749) 652)

Prepayments 85) 113)

Impairment provision (22) (38)

TToottaall 11,,888800) 22,,553388)

SSlloovvnnaafftt  GGrroouupp
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99  CCaasshh  aanndd  ccaasshh  eeqquuiivvaalleennttss

3311  DDeecceemmbbeerr 22000044 3311  DDeecceemmbbeerr 22000033

(SKK million) (SKK million)

Cash at bank — SKK 396 895

Cash at bank — EUR 361 154

Cash at bank — USD 31 38

Cash at bank — other currencies 758 456

Cash on hand — SKK 2 1

Cash on hand — EUR - 2

Cash on hand — USD 1 1

Cash on hand — other currencies - 1

Short-term bank deposits — SKK 3,535 2,664

Short-term bank deposits — EUR 118 107

Short-term bank deposits — USD 68 250

Short-term bank deposits — PLN 1,514 34

Short-term bank deposits — other currencies 529 11

TToottaall 77,,331133 44,,661144

Interest rates on current accounts range from 1.5% to 2.5% and those on short-term deposits from 1.35% to 7.0%.

For the purposes of the consolidated cash flow statement, the cash and cash equivalents comprise the following:

3311  DDeecceemmbbeerr 22000044 3311  DDeecceemmbbeerr 22000033

(SKK million) (SKK million)

Cash at bank 1,194 1,160

Cash on hand 3 3

Short-term bank deposits — other currencies 5,764 3,068

TToottaall 66,,996611 44,,223311

Cash of SKK 352 million (2003: SKK 383 million) is restricted due to ongoing litigation (Note 14).

1100  SShhaarree  ccaappiittaall

The Company’s authorised share capital is 20,625,229 ordinary shares (31 December 2003: 20,625,229) with a par value of SKK 1,000 each.

All of these shares are issued and fully paid.

1111  RReettaaiinneedd  eeaarrnniinnggss

Retained earnings comprise the Legal Reserve Fund of SKK 3,006 million (31 December 2003: SKK 2,728 million) is set up in accordance with

the Slovak law to cover potential future losses and is not distributable.
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1122  MMiinnoorriittyy  iinntteerreessttss

3311  DDeecceemmbbeerr 22000044 3311  DDeecceemmbbeerr 22000033

(SKK million) (SKK million)

At the beginning of the period 62 1

Minorities from subsidiaries previously consolidated on equity basis - 51

Minority share of net profit of subsidiaries 1 10

AAtt  tthhee  eenndd  ooff  tthhee  ppeerriioodd 6633 6622

1133  BBoorrrroowwiinnggss

3311  DDeecceemmbbeerr 22000044 3311  DDeecceemmbbeerr 22000033

(SKK million) (SKK million)

BBoorrrroowwiinnggss  iinncclluuddee

Unsecured bank overdrafts - 104

Unsecured bank loans - 2,342

Finance lease liability 2 9

Fair value of crude oil put options embedded in loan agreements (Note 21) - 3

TToottaall 22 22,,445588

RReeppaayymmeennttss  ffaallll  dduuee  aass  ffoolllloowwss

Within 1 year 1 2,458

Between 1 and 5 years 1 -

TToottaall 22 22,,445588

FFiinnaannccee  lleeaasseess  lliiaabbiilliittiieess  ——  mmiinniimmuumm  lleeaassee  ppaayymmeennttss

Not later than 1 year 1 9

Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years 1 -

TToottaall 22 99

TThhee  pprreesseenntt  vvaalluuee  ooff  ffiinnaanncciiaall  lleeaassee  lliiaabbiilliittiieess  iiss  aass  ffoolllloowwss::

Not later than 1 year 1 9

Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years 1 -

TToottaall 22 99

TThhee  eexxppoossuurree  ooff  tthhee  bboorrrroowwiinnggss  ooff  tthhee  GGrroouupp  ttoo  ffoorreeiiggnn  ccuurrrreennccyy  eexxcchhaannggee  rraattee  cchhaannggee  iiss  aass  ffoolllloowwss::

Slovak crowns 2 2

US dollars - 1,718

Euro - 9

Czech crowns - 710

Polish zloty - 19

TToottaall 22 22,,445588

TThhee  eexxppoossuurree  ooff  tthhee  bboorrrroowwiinnggss  ooff  tthhee  GGrroouupp  ttoo  iinntteerreesstt  rraattee  cchhaannggeess  aanndd  tthhee  ppeerriiooddss  iinn  wwhhiicchh  tthhee  bboorrrroowwiinnggss  rree--pprriiccee  aarree  aass  ffoolllloowwss::

Within 1 year 1 2,458

Between 1 and 5 years 1 -

TToottaall 22 22,,445588

The weighted average interest rate of finance lease liabilities in 2004 was 14.72% (2003: 10.38%). The weighted average interest rate 

of short-term borrowings in 2003 was 2.23% and of long-term borrowings was 1.94%.
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1144  PPrroovviissiioonnss  ffoorr  lliiaabbiilliittiieess  aanndd  cchhaarrggeess

RReedduunnddaannccyy PPeennssiioonn

aanndd  ootthheerr aanndd  jjuubbiilleeee

eemmppllooyyeeee eemmppllooyyeeee EEnnvviirroonn--

bbeenneeffiittss bbeenneeffiittss mmeennttaall LLiittiiggaattiioonnss OOtthheerr TToottaall

(SKK million) (SKK million) (SKK million) (SKK million) (SKK million) (SKK million)

At 1 January 2004 400) 164) 430) 802) -) 1,796)

Utilised during the year (263) -) (84) (281) -) (628)

Additional provision 972) 50) 586) -) 15) 1,623)

Unused amounts -) (77) (33) (144) -) (254)

Interest expense 6) 10) 4) -) -) 20)

AAtt  3311  DDeecceemmbbeerr  22000044 11,,111155) 114477) 990033) 337777) 1155) 22,,555577)

Current portion 1,113) -) 259) 377) 15) 1,764)

Non-current portion 2) 147) 644) -) -) 793)

TToottaall 11,,111155) 114477) 990033) 337777) 1155) 22,,555577)

At 1 January 2003 474) 92) 459) -) -) 1,025)

Utilised during the year (123) -) (42) -) -) (165)

Additional provision 77) 66) -) 802) -) 945)

Unused amounts (40) -) (5) -) -) (45)

Interest expense 12) 6) 18) -) -) 36)

AAtt  3311  DDeecceemmbbeerr  22000033 440000) 116644) 443300) 880022) --) 11,,779966)

Current portion 249) -) 68) 802) -) 1,119)

Non-current portion 151) 164) 362) -) -) 677)

TToottaall 440000) 116644) 443300) 880022) --) 11,,779966)

PPrroovviissiioonn  ffoorr  rreedduunnddaannccyy  aanndd  ootthheerr  eemmppllooyyeeee  bbeenneeffiittss

The Group started to implement the restructuring plan during 2003. The entire restructuring process will result in termination of employment

before the normal retirement date of up to 1,687 employees until the end of 2005. The Group has a detailed formal plan for the termination and

material changes to the plan are not likely. Provisions of SKK 191 million (31 December 2003: SKK 400 million) for the net present value of future

redundancy payments and related tax and contributions were recognised in these financial statements.

The collective labour agreements of the Group companies include higher severance payment than required by law. In order to bring the collective

agreements into line with current labour market conditions, in December, 2004 the Group has initiated a process to reduce future severance 

payments to the standard legally required level. As a result of the process the collective labour agreements was amended eliminating the extra

severance payment. This amendment does not effect already implemented restructuring plans.

During the negotiations with the trade unions the Group agreed to provide volunteering current employees with a one-off reward based on their

current salary and length of employment with the Group. The acceptance of this agreement by the employees exceeds 90% in the Group

Consequently a provision of SKK 924 million has been recognised in the accompanying consolidated financial statements as of 31 December

2004. Non-volunteering employees retain their rights for benefits in case of being made redundand as part of a restructuring plan.
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1144  PPrroovviissiioonnss  ffoorr  lliiaabbiilliittiieess  aanndd  cchhaarrggeess  ((ccoonnttiinnuueedd))

PPeennssiioonnss  aanndd  ootthheerr  eemmppllooyyeeee  bbeenneeffiittss  

3311  DDeecceemmbbeerr 22000044 3311  DDeecceemmbbeerr 22000033

(SKK million) (SKK million)

TThhee  aammoouunnttss  rreeccooggnniisseedd  iinn  tthhee  iinnccoommee  ssttaatteemmeenntt  aarree  aass  ffoolllloowwss::

Past service cost 28) 16)

Current service cost 22) 20)

Actuarial gains and losses (3) (18)

Interest expense 10) 6)

Revision and utilisation (74) -)

Provision for jubilee and disability benefits -) 48)

TToottaall ((1177)) 7722)

TThhee  ffoolllloowwiinngg  aammoouunnttss  hhaavvee  bbeeeenn  rreeccooggnniisseedd  wwiitthh  rreessppeecctt  ooff  tthhee  ddeeffiinneedd  bbeenneeffiitt  ppeennssiioonn  ppllaann::

Present value of defined benefit obligation 413) 469)

Past service cost not yet recognised (266) (305)

PPrroovviissiioonn  rreeccooggnniisseedd  iinn  tthhee  bbaallaannccee  sshheeeett 114477) 116644)

The principal actuarial assumptions used were as follows:

3311  DDeecceemmbbeerr 22000044

Discount rate 8% p.a. in 2004 and 7% p.a. thereafter

Future salary increases 6% p.a. in 2004 a 5% p.a. thereafter

Mortality Slovak population mortality 2000

EEnnvviirroonnmmeennttaall  pprroovviissiioonnss

The Group operates 283 service stations and several warehousing capacities in the Slovak Republic. Some of these are not fully compliant with

the current or future environmental legislation and environmental policy of the Group, including containment of evaporative losses on filling of

the station tanks, treatment of effluent, and protection of soil and groundwater. The Group recognised environmental provisions 

of SKK 484 million (31 December 2003: SKK 430 million) for decommissioning of non-compliant warehousing capacities and those service 

stations sites where activities will be ceased. 

In accordance with the Group policies a provision for the estimated costs of remediation of past environmental damages, primarily soil and

groundwater contamination under the refinery site was recognised. The amount of the provision of SKK 419 million has been determined on the

basis of existing technology at current prices by calculating risk-weighted cash flows discounted using estimated risk-free real interest rates. 

The utilisation of this provision is expected to be within the next 10 — 11 years.

The closing amount of the environmental provisions is SKK 903 million (31 December 2003: SKK 430 million).

LLiittiiggaattiioonnss

Apollo Interoil

Following the decision of the Board of Directors of the Company, the Company cancelled the contract with Apollo Oil, a subsidiary of the

Company, being the sole supplier of crude oil. In May 2003 Apollo Interoil, minority shareholder of Apollo Oil, filed an Attachment Request against

Apollo Oil at a Geneva court claiming breach of the Crude Master Supply agreement and penalties in the amount of USD 11.6 million referring to

that Apollo Oil did not take over the quantity of the crude oil accordingly to the agreement. Apollo Oil on the basis of long-term crude oil supply

agreements sold the crude oil bought from Apollo Interoil to the Company. As a consequence this amount was blocked in the Swiss bank account

of Apollo Oil. Considering that the amount blocked in the account of Apollo Oil was the consideration for the crude oil supplies for the Company,

until the release of the freezing Apollo Oil cannot perform toward the Company according to the contract, the Company has terminated the 

supply agreement with Apollo Oil. In line with its strategy the Group in the meantime arranged crude oil supplies directly from Russian suppliers’

trading companies.The court proceedings are ongoing and based on recent legal opinion and on the grounds of prudence the Group recognised

a provision of SKK 377 million in the accompanying consolidated financial statements.
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Lawsuit against the Tax Office Bratislava II 

In January 2004 Slovnaft, a.s. requested a relief from payments of penalties and sanctions levied by tax authorities and due for payments 

as a result of the lawsuits against the tax authorities. The total amount of SKK 92 million was relieved from payment. The remainder 

of the sanctions has been paid in 2004.

The closing amount of the provisions for litigations is SKK 377 million (31 December 2003: SKK 802 million).

1155  GGoovveerrnnmmeenntt  ggrraannttss  aanndd  ootthheerr  nnoonn  ccuurrrreenntt  lliiaabbiilliittiieess

3311  DDeecceemmbbeerr 22000044 3311  DDeecceemmbbeerr 22000033

(SKK million) (SKK million)

GGoovveerrnnmmeenntt  ggrraannttss

At 1 january 782) 747)

Government grants received — cash 78) 67)

Government grants received — assets received 30) -)

Amortisation for the period (Note 19) (84) (32)

AAtt  3311  DDeecceemmbbeerr 880066) 778822)

Other non-current liabilities 25) 10)

TToottaall 883311) 779922)

Government grants were provided to finance certain Property, plant and equipment designed and constructed to serve State Authorities, 

including military forces, in state emergencies (Note 2).

1166  DDeeffeerrrreedd  iinnccoommee  ttaaxx

Deferred taxes are calculated in full on temporary differences under the liability method using a principal tax rate of 19% (2003: 19%). 

Deferred tax assets and liabilities and the deferred tax charge in the income statement (Note 22) are attributable to the following items:

CChhaarrggeedd  ttoo

3311  DDeecceemmbbeerr  22000033 iinnccoommee  ssttaatteemmeenntt 3311  DDeecceemmbbeerr  22000044

(SKK million) (SKK million) (SKK million)

DDeeffeerrrreedd  iinnccoommee  ttaaxx  aasssseettss

Provisions recognition 175) 57) 232)

Receivables written off tax deductible in future 80) (22) 58)

Tax loss carried forward 5) (3) 2)

Unrealised gains on intra-group transfers -) 16) 16)

Other 25) (6) 19)

DDeeffeerrrreedd  ttaaxx  aasssseettss 228855) 4422) 332277)

DDeeffeerrrreedd  iinnccoommee  ttaaxx  lliiaabbiilliittiieess

Difference between tax and carrying values of property, plant and equipment (165) (219) (384)

Other (5) 4) (1)

DDeeffeerrrreedd  ttaaxx  lliiaabbiilliittiieess ((117700)) ((221155)) ((338855))

NNeett  ddeeffeerrrreedd  iinnccoommee  ttaaxx  aasssseettss (Note 22) 111155) ((117733)) ((5588))

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when the income taxes relate to the same fiscal authority.
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1166  DDeeffeerrrreedd  iinnccoommee  ttaaxx  ((ccoonnttiinnuueedd))

A deferred tax asset of SKK 232 million (31 December 2003: 175 million) has been recognised as of 31 December 2004 to account for the timing

differences in respect of environmental provision, redundancy provision, and pension benefits.

Under the current Slovak tax law receivables written off meeting certain conditions may be offset evenly against current and future taxable 

profits. Deferred tax asset of SKK 58 million (31 December 2003: SKK 80 million) was recognised in this respect. 

Tax losses of SKK 679 million (31 December 2003: SKK 539 million) of certain subsidiaries carried forward did not qualify for deferred tax asset

recognition because significant uncertainties exist in respect of availability of future taxable profits in those subsidiaries against which these

losses could be utilised. These can be carried forward until 2007 and 2009 respectively. 

1177  TTrraaddee  aanndd  ootthheerr  ppaayyaabblleess

3311  DDeecceemmbbeerr 22000044 3311  DDeecceemmbbeerr 22000033

(SKK million) (SKK million)

Trade payables (Note 18) 8,309 8,199

Other taxes 2,497 2,025

Customs fees payable 887 416

Accrued expenses 389 369

Amounts due to employees 248 213

Security deposit received from petrol station lessees 83 59

Social security 74 72

Liabilities to shareholders (dividends) 44 11

Tax penalty - 135

Other liabilities 66 46

TToottaall 1122,,559977 1111,,554455
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1188  SSeeggmmeenntt  rreeppoorrttiinngg

PPrriimmaarryy  rreeppoorrttiinngg  ffoorrmmaatt  ——  bbuussiinneessss  sseeggmmeennttss

Group is organised into following business segments: Refining and marketing, Petrochemicals and Corporate and other. The internal transfer

prices are derived from international quoted market prices published by Platt’s or ICIS, reflecting international nature of oil business.

IInntteerrsseeggmmeennttss

RReeffiinniinngg CCoorrppoorraattee ssaalleess TToottaall

aanndd  mmaarrkkeettiinngg PPeettrroocchheemmiiccaallss aanndd  ootthheerr eelliimmiinnaattiioonn GGrroouupp

(SKK million) (SKK million) (SKK million) (SKK million) (SKK million)

YYeeaarr  eennddeedd  3311  DDeecceemmbbeerr  22000044

NNeett  ssaalleess 86,575) 12,681) 2,399) (16,485) 8855,,117700)

Segment operating result 12,697) 912) (1,320) - 1122,,228899)

Share of profit of associates -) -) 74) - 7744)

Finance revenues net -) -) 136) - 113366)

PPrrooffiitt  bbeeffoorree  ttaaxx 12,697) 912) (1,110) - 1122,,449999)

Income tax expense -) -) (2,477) - ((22,,447777))

PPrrooffiitt  aafftteerr  ttaaxxaattiioonn 12,697) 912) (3,587) - 1100,,002222)

Depreciation, amortisation and impairment charge 3,537) 60) 242) - 33,,883399)

Other non-cash expenses 370) (5) 545) - 991100)

YYeeaarr  eennddeedd  3311  DDeecceemmbbeerr  22000033

NNeett  ssaalleess 66,369) 12,779) 581) (12 433) 6677,,229966)

Segment operating result 5,414) (320) (2,262) - 22,,883322)

Share of profit of associates -) -) 27) - 2277)

Finance revenues net -) -) 648) - 664488)

PPrrooffiitt  bbeeffoorree  ttaaxx 5,414) (320) (1,587) - 33,,550077)

Income tax expense -) -) (1,123) - ((11,,112233))

PPrrooffiitt  aafftteerr  ttaaxxaattiioonn 5,414) (320) (2,710) - 22,,338844)

Depreciation, amortisation and impairment charge 2,886) 405) 221) - 33,,551122)

Other non-cash expenses 74) (2) 710) - 778822)

AAtt  3311  DDeecceemmbbeerr  22000044

SSeeggmmeenntt  aasssseettss 46,490 7,552 11,359 (536) 6644,,886655

Out of that trade receivables (Note 7) 7,055 952 557 (515) 88,,004499

SSeeggmmeenntt  lliiaabbiilliittiieess 11,726 643 6,017 (732) 1177,,665544

Out of that trade payables (Note 17) 7,656 558 573 (478) 88,,330099

CCaappiittaall  eexxppeennddiittuurree 3,558 2,992 143 - 66,,669933

AAtt  3311  DDeecceemmbbeerr  22000033

SSeeggmmeenntt  aasssseettss 37,703 7,058 11,685 - 5566,,444466

Out of that trade receivables (Note 7) 5,137 647 13 - 55,,779977

SSeeggmmeenntt  lliiaabbiilliittiieess 10,385 972 5,241 - 1166,,559988

Out of that trade payables (Note 17) 7,062 840 297 - 88,,119999

CCaappiittaall  eexxppeennddiittuurree 3,843 1,623 195 - 55,,666611
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1188  SSeeggmmeenntt  rreeppoorrttiinngg  ((ccoonnttiinnuueedd))

SSeeccoonnddaarryy  rreeppoorrttiinngg  sseeggmmeennttss  ——  ggeeooggrraapphhiiccaall  sseeggmmeennttss

YYeeaarr  eennddeedd YYeeaarr  eennddeedd

3311  DDeecceemmbbeerr  22000044 3311  DDeecceemmbbeerr  22000033

(SKK million) (SKK million)

NNeett  ssaalleess

Slovakia 24,936 23,529

Czech Republic 20,884 18,824

Austria 16,194 7,797

Poland 9,347 6,701

Hungary 3,198 4,161

Germany 5,718 3,170

Other 4,893 3,114

TToottaall 8855,,117700 6677,,229966

TToottaall  aasssseettss

Slovakia 57,677 51,383

Czech Republic 3,591 3,231

Austria 362 418

Poland 1,875 1,399

Hungary 1,360 -

Other - 15

TToottaall 6644,,886655 5566,,444466

CCaappiittaall  eexxppeennddiittuurree

Slovakia 6,378 5,228

Czech Republic 94 190

Poland 221 243

TToottaall 66,,669933 55,,666611

1199  OOppeerraattiinngg  pprrooffiitt

The breakdown of selected items of operating profit is as follows:

((ii))  OOtthheerr  ooppeerraattiinngg  iinnccoommee

YYeeaarr  eennddeedd YYeeaarr  eennddeedd

3311  DDeecceemmbbeerr  22000044 3311  DDeecceemmbbeerr  22000033

(SKK million) (SKK million)

Reimbursement from insurance companies 185 21

Reversed write-off on stocks 163 35

Exchange gain on customers and suppliers in foreign currrencies 137 -

The sale of metals (when catalysts liquidated) 117 -

Amortisation of government grants (Note 15) 84 32

Received fines, penalties, default penalties and penalty relief 56 12

Reversed write-off and impairment on receivables 25 -

Profit from the sale of intangible and tangible assets 15 144

Other operating income 182 99

TToottaall 996644 334433

SSlloovvnnaafftt  GGrroouupp
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AT 31 DECEMBER 2004

5566



SSlloovvnnaafftt  GGrroouupp
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AT 31 DECEMBER 2004

((iiii))  VVaalluuee  ooff  sseerrvviicceess  uusseedd

YYeeaarr  eennddeedd YYeeaarr  eennddeedd

3311  DDeecceemmbbeerr  22000044 3311  DDeecceemmbbeerr  22000033

(SKK million) (SKK million)

Transportation and storage expenses 1,462 1,361

Maintenance expenses 1,063 1,314

Commission fees paid 710 485

Services related to administration 229 195

Catalysts liquidation 69 32

Other services 149 191

TToottaall 33,,668822 33,,557788

((iiiiii))  OOtthheerr  ooppeerraattiinngg  eexxppeennsseess

YYeeaarr  eennddeedd YYeeaarr  eennddeedd

3311  DDeecceemmbbeerr  22000044 3311  DDeecceemmbbeerr  22000033

(SKK million) (SKK million)

Net increase in provisions (creation less unused amounts) 1,446 900

Rental including operating lease 545 548

Accounting, advisory and similar services fees 429 417

Insurance premium 271 317

Marketing communication costs 137 147

Taxes and duties 131 61

Cleaning costs 121 106

Management services from MOL 113 127

Security expenses 109 85

Environmental protection costs 94 134

Training cost 33 124

Write-off and impairment of receivables - 92

Net foreign exchange foreign gains related to operation - 212

Other operating expenses 107 132

TToottaall 33,,553366 33,,440022

2200  PPeerrssoonnnneell  eexxppeennsseess

YYeeaarr  eennddeedd YYeeaarr  eennddeedd

3311  DDeecceemmbbeerr  22000044 3311  DDeecceemmbbeerr  22000033

(SKK million) (SKK million)

Wages, salaries and bonuses 2,040 2,162

Social security costs 627 593

Other personnel expenses 206 151

TToottaall 22,,887733 22,,990066

The average number of employees of the Group during the year ended 31 December 2004 was 4,755 (31 December 2003: 5,219).
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2211  FFiinnaanncciiaall  iinnccoommee  //  ((eexxppeennsseess))

22000044 22000033

(SKK million) (SKK million)

Interest income 133) 141)

Changes in fair value of put options embedded in loan agreements 3) 246)

Net foreign exchange gains 1) 274)

Other finance income 140) 119)

TToottaall  ffiinnaanncciiaall  iinnccoommee 227777) 778800)

Interest expense (73) (104)

Loss from derivatives (37) -)

Other finance costs (31) (28)

TToottaall  ffiinnaanncciiaall  eexxppeennsseess ((114411)) ((113322))

TToottaall  ffiinnaanncciiaall  iinnccoommee,,  nneett 113366) 664488)

2222  TTaaxxaattiioonn

22000044 22000033

(SKK million) (SKK million)

Current tax charge 2,304) 971)

Deferred tax charge (Note 16) 173) 152)

TToottaall 22,,447777) 11,,112233)

The reconciliation between the reported income tax expense and the theoretical amount that would arise using the standard tax rates 

is as follows:

22000044 22000033

(SKK million) (SKK million)

Profit before taxation 12,499) 3,507)

Income tax at 19% (Year 2003: 25%) 2,375) 877)

Expenditure not allowable for income tax purposes 82) 178)

Effect of tax loss not assessable for tax release 36) 32)

Effect of utilisation of prior year tax losses carried forward (16) -)

Impact of the reduction in tax rate -) 36)

IInnccoommee  ttaaxx  cchhaarrggee  ffoorr  tthhee  yyeeaarr 22,,447777) 11,,112233)

2233  EEaarrnniinnggss  ppeerr  sshhaarree

22000044 22000033

Net profit attributable to ordinary shareholders (SKK millions) 10,021) 2,374)

Weighted average number of ordinary shares 20,625,229) 20,625,229)

EEaarrnniinnggss  ppeerr  sshhaarree  (SKK per share) 448855..99) 111155..11)

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit attributable to ordinary shareholders by the weighted average number of ordinary

shares in issue during the year.

There are no potential ordinary shares and therefore the diluted earnings per share is the same as the basic earnings per share.
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2244  DDiivviiddeennddss

The Annual General Meeting held on 27 May 2004 approved dividends of SKK 2,733 million in respect of the financial years 2002 and 2003. 

No dividends for the year 2004 were proposed or approved by the date of these financial statements.

2255  CCoommmmiittmmeennttss  aanndd  ccoonnttiinnggeenncciieess

OOppeerraattiinngg  lleeaasseess

The future aggregated minimum lease payments of operating leases are as follows:

3311  DDeecceemmbbeerr  22000044 3311  DDeecceemmbbeerr  22000033

(SKK million) (SKK million)

Not later than 1 year 166 97

Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years 170 45

TToottaall 333366 114422

MMiinniimmuumm  lleeaassee  ppaayymmeennttss  rreeccooggnniisseedd  iinn  iinnccoommee  ssttaatteemmeenntt  ffoorr  tthhee  ppeerriioodd 111133 9999

LLoonngg--tteerrmm  ccoonnttrraaccttss  ttoo  ppuurrcchhaassee  sseerrvviicceess

The Group has commitments from its long-term service contracts of SKK 3,008 million (31 December 2003: SKK 887 million) related to accounting

services, fire brigade services, payroll agenda services, warehouse operation services, logistics services and medical services.

CCaappiittaall  ccoommmmiittmmeennttss

At 31 December 2004 capital expenditure of SKK 1,177 million (31 December 2003: SKK 4,880 million) had been committed under contractual

arrangements.

CCoonnttiinnggeenntt  lliiaabbiilliittiieess

Guarantees of SKK 67 million (31 December 2003: SKK 67 million) have been issued in respect of loans of the Group employees and a PZC 

(medical service provider).

MMiinniissttrryy  ooff  FFiinnaannccee

In November 2004 the Slovak Ministry of Finance initiated a price audit procedure at the Company on its fuel prices for the period between 2002

and 2004. The price audit procedure was closed in December with a Protocol stating that in the opinion of the audit team the Company's prices

included SKK 1.35 billion unjustified expenses and disproportionate profits. Based on the findings of the price audit the Ministry of Finance 

started an administrative procedure against the Company the result of which was that the Ministry of Finance imposed a fine on the Company in

its decision of first instance. As the Company disagrees with the findings of the audit team, it challenged the negative decision by the Ministry of

Finance. By reason of the Company’s appeal the procedure of the second instance of the Ministry of Finance is in progress, the Company 

is entitled to file a lawsuit against the administrative decision of the second instance. the Company’s opinion beside the procedural irregularities

and deficiencies, especially because of the lack of the ministerial instruction on legal expenses and measures of the profit, as well as the 

ministry’s arbitrary and economically unfounded calculations concerning the measures of “proportionate profit” a favourable result of the lawsuit is

expected.

5599



2255  CCoommmmiittmmeennttss  aanndd  ccoonnttiinnggeenncciieess  ((ccoonnttiinnuueedd))

LLiittiiggaattiioonnss

The Group is the defendants in the litigations of SKK 590 million. The major part of these litigations relates to the Mende-Rossi lawsuit.

The Russian arbitral court imposed USD 20 million upon the Company as defendant for failing the consideration of the crude oil supplies in its

resolution on April of 1996 in the course of the proceeding initiated by plaintiff “Mende-Rossi”, Mendelejevsk Tartar firm in front of the

International Commercial Arbitration Tribunal at the Chamber of Commerce and Industry of the Russian Federation. Considering that the

Russian arbitration proceeding violated the rights to impartial proceeding and right to represent of the Company as contending party, as well as

because the decision was not supported with adequate evidence the Supreme Court of Slovak Republic finally refused the enforcement of the

decision of the Russian court of arbitration. Mende-Rossi also asked the enforcement of the decision of the court of arbitration in Austria in 1997

at the same time with the attempt of the Slovak enforcement. The Company filed an appeal against it. The Austrian proceeding is still going on,

but regarding the decision of the Supreme Court of Slovak Republic on 11 of March of 2004 which finds the decision of the court of arbitration

illegal as follows not enforceable the Company does not consider likely a failure of lawsuit in front of the Austrian court.

MMiinnoorriittiieess

Based on the legal opinion the directors are confident that the Company will not suffer any losses in connection with legal actions carried out by

certain minority shareholders requesting to declare invalid the resolutions of the Extraordinary General Meeting held on 17 December 2002 and

Ordinary General Meeting held on 17 May 2003. On 12 October 2004 the Supreme Court and on 16 December 2003 the County Court in

Bratislava issued decisions rejecting the complaints of minority shareholders in the full scope. The plaintiffs filed appeals against both 

of decisions. As at the date of these financial statements no Supreme Court resolution on the appeal has been made.

2266  SShhaarreehhoollddeerrss  ssttrruuccttuurree

3311  DDeecceemmbbeerr  22000044 3311  DDeecceemmbbeerr  22000033

(% shareholding) (% shareholding)

MMaajjoorr  sshhaarreehhoollddeerrss  ooff  SSlloovvnnaafftt  wweerree::

MOL Hungarian Oil and Gas Plc. 98.40 70.00

Others 1.60 30.00

TToottaall 110000..0000 110000..0000

2277  RReellaatteedd  ppaarrttyy  ttrraannssaaccttiioonnss

The Group is controlled by MOL Hungarian Oil and Gas Plc. During the year the Group carried out transactions with MOL Group companies

(including TVK Group). Messer SLOVNAFT is an associate of SLOVNAFT, a.s. 

Mr. Oszkár Világi, the Company’s Supervisory Board member is the chairman of the Managing Board of Železnice SR (Railways of SR). The total

turnover with this company in 2004 amounted to SKK 28 million.

The partner of the company Real — H.M., s.r.o. is related to the former Chairman of Board of Directors, Mr. Hatina. The turnover with this 

company in 2004 amounted to SKK 449 million.

The companies VUSAPL and MOL CHEM Ltd ceased to be a related party in 2003.

The management of the Company believes that the trading terms with these companies are/were not substantially different from normal 

commercial terms provided by/to other companies. 

No loans have been provided to the Directors. 
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22000044 22000033

(SKK million) (SKK million)

SSaalleess  ——  pprroodduuccttss  aanndd  ggooooddss

MOL Group 10,524 11,466

TVK Group 1,373 2,021

Messer Slovnaft 131 124

Real — HM., s.r.o. 449 636

Železnice Slovenskej republiky 27 22

VUSAPL - 23

TToottaall 1122,,550044 1144,,229922

SSaalleess  ——  sseerrvviicceess

MOL Group 12 10

Messer Slovnaft 2 -

Železnice Slovenskej republiky 1 -

Real — HM., s.r.o. 3 3

TToottaall 1188 1133

PPuurrcchhaasseess  ——  pprroodduuccttss  aanndd  ggooooddss

MOL Group 4,244 2,641

Messer Slovnaft 174 152

TToottaall 44,,441188 22,,779933

PPuurrcchhaasseess  ——  sseerrvviicceess

MOL Group 307 151

TVK Group 24 2

Železnice Slovenskej republiky 2 -

TToottaall 333333 115533

IInntteerreesstt  eexxppeennssee

MOL Group 2 -

TToottaall 22 --

DDiirreeccttoorrss  aanndd  kkeeyy  mmaannaaggeemmeenntt

Remuneration for services as directors and key management 5522 4477

22000044 22000033

(SKK million) (SKK million)

RReecceeiivvaabblleess

MOL Group 1,384 1,093

TVK Group - 141

Real — HM., s.r.o. 19 30

Železnice Slovenskej republiky 5 -

Amounts due from Group undertakings accounted for on an equity basis 14 13

TToottaall 11,,442222 11,,227777

LLooaannss  ggrraanntteedd

MOL Group (Note 8) - 1,070

TToottaall -- 11,,007700

PPaayyaabblleess

MOL Group 395 125

TVK Group 9 23

Amounts due from Group undertakings accounted for on an equity basis 15 40

TToottaall 441199 118888
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2288  PPoosstt  bbaallaannccee  sshheeeett  eevveennttss

In February 2005 the Ministry of Finance of the Slovak Republic initiated a second price audit procedure focusing on the adherence to the Act of

Prices and other generally binding legal regulations for the period after 30 September 2004. This price audit procedure has not been finished as

at the date of these financial statements and the management is not able to estimate its possible results.

No other events have occurred after 31 December 2004 that would require adjustment to, or disclosure in the financial statements.
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